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PART |
ITEM 1: BUSINESS
GENERAL
PATHFINDER BANCORP, INC.

Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. (the "Company") is a Fatlgichartered mid-tier holding company headquadén Oswego, New York. The
primary business of the Company is its investmemathfinder Bank (the "Bank") and Pathfinder StatuTrust I. The Company is majority
owned by Pathfinder Bancorp, M.H.C., a federallgithred mutual holding company (the "Mutual Hold@®gmpany"). At December 31,
2005, the Mutual Holding Company held 1,583,23%ast@f Common Stock and the public held 879,898eshaf Common Stock (the
"Minority Shareholders"). At December 31, 2005,Hfader Bancorp, Inc. had total assets of $296.8anj total deposits of $236.4 million
and shareholders' equity of $20.9 million.

The Company's executive office is located at 214Mrast Street, Oswego, New York and the telephameber at that address is (315) 343-
0057.

PATHFINDER BANK

The Bank is a New York-chartered savings bank headgred in Oswego, New York. The Bank operates fits main office as well as six
full-service offices located in its market area sisting of Oswego County and the contiguous coanfibe Bank's deposits are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC"). Bamk was chartered as a New York savings banB%® s Oswego City Savings Bank.
The Bank is a consumeriented institution dedicated to providing mortgdgans and other traditional financial servicegg@ustomers. Th
Bank is committed to meeting the financial needgso€ustomers in Oswego County, New York, the ¢pimwhich it operates.

The Bank is primarily engaged in the business todeting deposits from the general public in theBs market area, and investing such
deposits, together with other sources of fundfams secured by one- to four-family residential estate and commercial real estate. At
December 31, 2005, $150.9 million, or 80% of thalBs total loan portfolio consisted of loans sedurg real estate, of which $119.1 milli
or 64%, were loans secured by one- to fiaumily residences and $31.8 million, or 17%, wezewsed by commercial real estate. Additione
$16.3 million, or 11%, of total real estate loansye secured by second liens on residential priegettat are classified as consumer loans.
The Bank also originates commercial and consunsrdadhat totaled $18.3 and $3.4 million, respebtivar 12%, of the Bank's total loan
portfolio. The Bank invests a portion of its assetsecurities issued by the United States Govemmagencies and sponsored enterprises,
state and municipal obligations, corporate debuistées, mutual funds, and equity securities. Tl@liBalso invests in mortgage-backed
securities primarily issued or guaranteed by UnB&ates Government sponsored enterprises. TheSBaricipal sources of funds are
deposits, principal and interest payments on l@aksborrowings from correspondent financial insititws. The principal source of income is
interest on loans and investment securities. ThekBaprincipal expenses are interest paid on dep@sid employee compensation and
benefits.

The Bank's executive office is located at 214 \Wraistt Street, Oswego, New York, and its telephommiper at that address is (315) A&7

Pathfinder Bank formed a limited purpose commefagaik subsidiary, Pathfinder Commercial Bank, itiaBer of 2002. Pathfinder
Commercial Bank was established to serve the depgsieeds of public entities in its market area.
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In April 1999, the Bank established Pathfinder RHNE. as the Bank's wholly-owned real estate itnaest trust subsidiary. At December 31,
2005, Pathfinder REIT, Inc. held $23.7 million irortgages and mortgage related assets. Recenalégisproposed by the New York State
legislature would eliminate the tax treatment adedrREITs. Enactment of this legislation would @age the state tax rate for the Company.
All disclosures in the Form 10-K relating to ther8& loans and investments include loans and imasis that are held by Pathfinder REIT,
Inc.

The Bank also has 100% ownership in Whispering @skegelopment Corp., which was originally formedievelop the Whispering Oaks
real estate subdivision in Baldwinsville, New Yofthe Bank gained titled to the Whispering Oaks esshite subdivision through foreclosure.
The Whispering Oaks real estate subdivision has hély developed. The subsidiary is retained, hesvein case the need to operate or
develop other foreclosed real estate emerges.

MARKET AREA AND COMPETITION

The economy in the Bank's market area is manufaghariented and is also significantly dependerdruthe State University of New York
College at Oswego. The major manufacturing emppirethe Bank's market area are Entergy Nucleathidast, Novelis, Constellation,
NRG and Huhtamaki. The Bank is the second largean€ial institution headquartered in Oswego CouHtywever, the Bank encounte
competition from a variety of sources. The Bankisibess and operating results are significantlyciéid by the general economic conditions
prevalent in its market areas.

The Bank encounters strong competition both iraeting deposits and in originating real estatea@thdr loans. Its most direct competition
deposits has historically come from commercial sawings banks, savings associations and credihanioits market area. Competition for
loans comes from such financial institutions ad w&lmortgage banking companies. The Bank expectintied strong competition in the
foreseeable future, including increased competitiom "superregional” banks entering the market by purchasingd commercial banks a
savings banks. Many such institutions have grdatancial and marketing resources available to thigen does the Bank. The Bank
competes for savings deposits by offering depasiadnigh level of personal service and a wide rarig®mpetitively priced financial
services. The Bank competes for real estate loamaply through the interest rates and loan féeharges and advertising, as well as by
originating and holding in its portfolio mortgagehs which do not necessarily conform to secondeamket underwriting standards.

REGULATION AND SUPERVISION
GENERAL

The Bank is a New York-chartered stock savings karkits deposit accounts are insured up to afpédamits by the FDIC through the
Bank Insurance Fund ("BIF"). The Bank is subjeatxtensive regulation by the New York State BankKi@gpartment (the "Department"), as
its chartering agency, and by the FDIC, as its dié¢fisurer and primary federal regulator. The Bentequired to file reports with, and is
periodically examined by, the FDIC and the Superident of the Department concerning its activitied financial condition and must obtain
regulatory approvals prior to entering into certim@msactions, including, but not limited to, mesgeith or acquisitions of other banking
institutions. The Bank is a member of the Fedei@hid Loan Bank of New York ("FHLBNY™") and is subjeotcertain regulations by the
Federal Home Loan Bank System. On July 19, 200Ctmapany and the Mutual Holding Company completeit ttonversion to federal
charters. Consequently, they are subject to reigukabf the Office of Thrift Supervision ("OTS") aavings and loan holding companies. /
change in such regulations, whether by the Depatintiee FDIC, or the OTS could have a material eslv@mpact on the Bank, the Company
or the Mutual Holding Company.

Regulatory requirements applicable to the BankQbmpany and the Mutual Holding Company are refetoebelow or elsewhere herein.
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NEW YORK BANK REGULATION

The exercise by an FDIC-insured savings bank ofahding and investment powers under the New YaateSBanking Law is limited by
FDIC regulations and other federal law and regoreti In particular, the applicable provisions ofAN¥ork State Banking Law and
regulations governing the investment authority aativities of an FDIC insured state-chartered sgwimank have been substantially limited
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Im@moent Act of 1991 ("FDICIA") and the FDIC regulat®issued pursuant thereto.

The Bank derives its lending, investment and othwthority primarily from the applicable provisiooBNew York State Banking Law and the
regulations of the Department, as limited by FDéguiations. Under these laws and regulations, gaudanks, including the Bank, may
invest in real estate mortgages, consumer and cociahbans, certain types of debt securities,udalg certain corporate debt securities and
obligations of federal, state and local governmants agencies, certain types of corporate equayrgees and certain other assets. New York
State chartered savings banks may also invesbisidiaries under their service corporation investiaithority. A savings bank may use this
power to invest in corporations that engage inowaiactivities authorized for savings banks, plusadditional activities, which may be
authorized by the Banking Board. Under FDICIA ahe EDIC's implementing regulations, the Bank's atwent and service corporation
activities are limited to activities permissibleg Bonational bank unless the FDIC otherwise perinits

The FDIC and the Superintendent have broad enfaneauthority over the Bank. Under this authottifiy FDIC and the Superintendent
have the ability to issue formal or informal orderorrect violations of law or unsafe or unsobatiking practices.

INSURANCE OF ACCOUNTS AND REGULATION BY THE FDIC

The Bank is a member of the BIF, which is admimedeby the FDIC. Deposits are insured up to appleamits by the FDIC and such
insurance is backed by the full faith and credithaf U.S. Government.

On February 15, 2006, federal legislation to reféenteral deposit insurance was signed into laws Tdw requires, among other things, the
merger of the Savings Association Insurance Fuuldtag Bank Insurance Fund into a unified insuradeggosit fund, an increase in the
amount of federal deposit insurance coverage frb@0P00 to $130,000 (with a cost of living adjustne® become effective in five years),
and the reserve ratio to be modified to providesfoange between 1.15% and 1.50% of estimatedddsieposits. The law requires the FDIC
to issue implementing regulations and the changgsired by the law will not become effective ufitial regulations have been issued, wt
must be no later than 270 days from February 16620

REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

The FDIC has adopted risk-based capital guidelioaghich the Bank is subject. The guidelines esthld systematic analytical framework
that makes regulatory capital requirements morsigea to differences in risk profiles among barkiorganizations. The Bank is required to
maintain certain levels of regulatory capital ifaten to regulatory risk-weighted assets. Theorafisuch regulatory capital to regulatory risk-
weighted assets is referred to as the Bank's lrdsed capital ratio." Riskased capital ratios are determined by allocatésgts and specifie
off-balance sheet items to four risk-weighted catig ranging from 0% to 100%, with higher levelsapital being required for the
categories perceived as representing greater risk.

These guidelines divide a savings bank's capitaltimo tiers. The first tier ("Tier 1") includes womon equity, retained earnings, certain non-
cumulative perpetual preferred stock (excludingtianaate issues) and minority interests in egaitgounts of consolidated subsidiaries, less
goodwill and other intangible assets (except m@ggservicing rights and purchased credit cardicglahips subject to certain limitations).
Supplementary ("Tier 1I") capital
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includes, among other items, cumulative perpetndllang-term limited-life preferred stock, mandatoonvertible securities, certain hybrid
capital instruments, term subordinated debt andlbgvance for loan and lease losses, subjectrtaindimitations, less required deductions.
Savings banks are required to maintain a totatesséed capital ratio of at least 8%, of which astel% must be Tier | capital.

In addition, the FDIC has established regulatiomsqribing a minimum Tier | leverage ratio (Tiezdpital to adjusted total assets as specified
in the regulations). These regulations provideafoninimum Tier | leverage ratio of 3% for bankstthreet certain specified criteria, includi
that they have the highest examination rating aadhat experiencing or anticipating significant\tb. All other banks are required to
maintain a Tier | leverage ratio of 3% plus an &ddal cushion of at least 100 to 200 basis poihitee FDIC and the other federal banking
regulators have proposed amendments to their mmicapital regulations to provide that the minim@awvedrage capital ratio for a depository
institution that has been assigned the highest ositgrating of 1 under the Uniform Financial Iagions Rating System will be 3% and that
the minimum leverage capital ratio for any othepaigtory institution will be 4% unless a higherdeage capital ratio is warranted by the
particular circumstances or risk profile of the dgipory institution. The FDIC may, however, sethegleverage and risk-based capital
requirements on individual institutions when parkée circumstances warrant. Savings banks expernigror anticipating significant growth

are expected to maintain capital ratios, includamygible capital positions, well above the minimiawvels.

LIMITATIONS ON DIVIDENDS AND OTHER CAPITAL DISTRIBU  TIONS

The FDIC has the authority to use its enforcememtgrs to prohibit a savings bank from paying divide if, in its opinion, the payment of
dividends would constitute an unsafe or unsoundtjwe Federal law also prohibits the payment eid#tinds by a bank that will result in the
bank failing to meet its applicable capital reqmients on a pro forma basis. New York law also ietstthe Bank from declaring a dividend
which would reduce its capital below (i) the amorequired to be maintained by state law and regulaor

(i) the amount of the Bank's liquidation accoustiablished in connection with the reorganizatiodertook in 1997.

PROMPT CORRECTIVE ACTION

The federal banking agencies have promulgated aggok to implement the system of prompt correctivéon required by federal law.
Under the regulations, a bank shall be deemed {§ bsell capitalized" if it has total risk-basedpital of 10.0% or more, has a Tier | risk-
based capital ratio of 6.0% or more, has a Tiewétage capital ratio of 5.0% or more and is nbjest to any written capital order or
directive; (ii) "adequately capitalized" if it hastotal risk-based capital ratio of 8.0% or mor@&jex | risk-based capital ratio of 4.0% or more
and a Tier | leverage capital ratio of 4.0% or m@€©% under certain circumstances) and does net the definition of "well capitalized";
(iii) "undercapitalized" if it has a total risk-bed capital ratio that is lessthan 8.0%, a Tiesk-hased capital ratio that is less than 4.0% or a
Tier | leverage capital ratio that is less thart4(3.0% under certain circumstances); (iv) "sigmifitly undercapitalized" if it has a total risk-
based capital ratio that is less than 6.0%, a[Tiiek-based capital ratio that is less than 3.0% ®ier | leverage capital ratio that is less than
3.0%; and (v) "critically undercapitalized" if ielk a ratio of tangible equity to total assets iatjual to or less than 2.0%. Federal law and
regulations also specify circumstances under waitdderal banking agency may reclassify a welltediped institution as adequately
capitalized and may require an adequately capé@liastitution to comply with supervisory actiorssiit were in the next lower category
(except that the FDIC may not reclassify a sigaifity undercapitalized institution as criticallydercapitalized).

Based on the foregoing, the Bank currently meedstheria to be classified as a "well capitalizedVings institution.
TRANSACTIONS WITH AFFILIATES AND INSIDERS

Under current federal law, transactions betweemsigqry institutions and their affiliates are gaved by Sections 23A and 23B of the Fec
Reserve Act and its implementing regulations. Afliatfe of a savings bank is any company
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or entity that controls, is controlled by, or isd@n common control with the savings bank, othen thgubsidiary of the savings bank. In a
holding company context, at a minimum, the parefding company of a savings bank and any compamigsh are controlled by such
parent holding company are affiliates of the sasibhgnk. Generally, Section 23A limits the extenivtoch the savings bank or its subsidia
may engage in "covered transactions" with any dfileate to an amount equal to 10% of such savibgsk's capital stock and surplus and
contains an aggregate limit on all such transastigith all affiliates to an amount equal to 20%soth capital stock and surplus. The term
"covered transaction” includes the making of loanether extensions of credit to an affiliate; furchase of assets from an affiliate, the
purchase of, or an investment in, the securitiemnddffiliate; the acceptance of securities of ffifisie as collateral for a loan or extension of
credit to any person; or issuance of a guaranteepgance, or letter of credit on behalf of anliafg. Section 23A also establishes specific
collateral requirements for loans or extensionereflit to, or guarantees, acceptances on lettemedft issued on behalf of an affiliate.
Section 23B requires that covered transactionsaamwad list of other specified transactions béeoms substantially the same, or no less
favorable, to the savings bank or its subsidiargiaslar transactions with nonaffiliates.

Further, Section 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Adtits implementing regulations restrict a savibgak with respect to loans to directors,
executive officers, and principal stockholders. Einflection 22(h), loans to directors, executiveeefs and stockholders who control, dire
or indirectly, 10% or more of voting securitiesao$avings bank and certain related interests obéihye foregoing, may not exceed, together
with all other outstanding loans to such persomkafiliated entities, the savings bank's totalita@nd surplus. Section 22(h) also prohibits
loans above amounts prescribed by the appropederal banking agency to directors, executive efficand stockholders who control 10%
or more of voting securities of a stock savingskhamd their respective related interests, unlash ®an is approved in advance by a
majority of the board of directors of the savingsk. Any "interested" director may not participatehe voting. The loan amount (which
includes all other outstanding loans to such pgraerio which such prior board of director apprasakquired, is the greater of $25,000 or
5% of capital and surplus or any loans over $500,6Qrther, pursuant to Section 22(h), loans tedadars, executive officers and principal
stockholders must generally be made on terms sutita the same as offered in comparable transastto other persons. Section 22(g) of
the Federal Reserve Act places additional limitegion loans to executive officers.

FEDERAL HOLDING COMPANY REGULATION

GENERAL. The Company and the Mutual Holding Comparg/ nondiversified mutual savings and loan holdiogipanies within the
meaning of the Home Owners' Loan Act. The Compantythe Mutual Holding Company are registered wih ©® TS and are subject to OTS
regulations, examinations, supervision and repgmaguirements. As such, the OTS has enforcemenoidty over the Company and the
Mutual Holding Company, and their non-savings tgtn subsidiaries. Among other things, this attiigpermits the OTS to restrict or
prohibit activities that are determined to be aosexrisk to the subsidiary savings institution.

PERMITTED ACTIVITIES. Under OTS regulation and mmjlj a mutual holding company and a federally cliadenidtier holding compan
such as the Company, may engage in the followitigigies: (i) investing in the stock of a savingssaciation; (i) acquiring a mutual
association through the merger of such associaitora savings association subsidiary of such hgldompany or an interim savings
association subsidiary of such holding compani); rtierging with or acquiring another holding compaone of whose subsidiaries is a
savings association; (iv) investing in a corponatithe capital stock of which is available for guase by a savings association under federal
law or under the law of any state where the sulgidiavings association or associations sharehbeie offices; (v) furnishing or performi
management services for a savings associationdsabsbf such company; (vi) holding, managing quidating assets owned or acquired
from a savings subsidiary of such company;

(vii) holding or managing properties used or ocedfddy a savings association subsidiary of such eoytgviii) acting as trustee under deeds
of trust; (ix) any other activity (A) that the FedeReserve Board, by regulation, has determindmktpermissible for bank holding companies
under Section 4(c) of the Bank Holding Company #fct956, unless the Director of the OTS, by regakatprohibits or limits any such
activity for savings and loan holding companies{R)in which multiple savings and loan holding quemies were authorized (by regulation)
to directly engage on March 5, 1987; (x) any attipermissible for financial holding companies un8ection 4(k) of the Bank
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Holding Company Act, including securities and irswre underwriting; and (xi) purchasing, holdingdmposing of stock acquired in
connection with a qualified stock issuance if thieghase of such stock by such savings and loarnrypttbmpany is approved by the Direc

If a mutual holding company acquires or merges waithther holding company, the holding company aeguor the holding company
resulting from such merger or acquisition may dnlyest in assets and engage in activities listgd) itarough (xi) above, and has a period of
two years to cease any nonconforming activitiesdinest of any nonconforming investments.

The Home Owners' Loan Act prohibits a savings aaah holding company, directly or indirectly, oradhgh one or more subsidiaries, from
acquiring another savings association or holdingpany thereof, without prior written approval c€t®@TS. It also prohibits the acquisition
or retention of, with certain exceptions, more tb&f of a nonsubsidiary savings association, a Hmsidiary holding company, or a
nonsubsidiary company engaged in activities otti@n those permitted by the Home Owners' Loan Acéicquiring or retaining control of an
institution that is not federally insured. In evatitng applications by holding companies to acgséeings associations, the OTS must con:
the financial and managerial resources, futuregaots of the company and association involvedeffext of the acquisition on the risk to the
insurance fund, the convenience and needs of timencmity and competitive factors.

The Office of Thrift Supervision is prohibited froapproving any acquisition that would result in altiple savings and loan holding comp:
controlling savings associations in more than datessubject to two exceptions: (i) the appro¥ahterstate supervisory acquisitions by
savings and loan holding companies, and (ii) tlppiesition of a savings institution in another stiittne laws of the state of the target savings
institution specifically permit such acquisitiofi$ie states vary in the extent to which they pemtérstate savings and loan holding company
acquisitions.

WAIVERS OF DIVIDENDS BY MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY. Offce of Thrift Supervision regulations require theitMal Holding
Company to notify the OTS of any proposed waiveitofeceipt of dividends from the Company

CONVERSION OF THE MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY TO STOCK®RM. OTS regulations permit the Mutual Holding Canp to
convert from the mutual form of organization to ttapital stock form of organization (a "Conversimansaction"). There can be no assur.
when, if ever, a Conversion Transaction will ocamnd the Board of Directors has no current intentioplan to undertake a Conversion
Transaction. In a Conversion Transaction a newihgldompany would be formed as the successor t€tmepany (the "New Holding
Company"), the Mutual Holding Company's corporatistence would end, and certain depositors of thekBvould receive the right to
subscribe for additional shares of the New Holdlgnpany. In a Conversion Transaction, each shaterafnon stock held by stockholders
other than the Mutual Holding Company ("MinorityoSkholders") would be automatically converted iatoumber of shares of common
stock of the New Holding Company determined pursaarexchange ratio that ensures that Minority IStoltlers own the same percentage
of common stock in the New Holding Company as thveyed in the Company immediately prior to the Casiamn Transaction. Under OTS
regulations, Minority Stockholders would not beutild because of any dividends waived by the Mutisddling Company (and waived
dividends would not be considered in determinin@ppropriate exchange ratio), in the event the Mlutlolding Company converts to stock
form. The total number of shares held by Minoritgckholders after a Conversion Transaction alsolevba increased by any purchases by
Minority Stockholders in the stock offering condettas part of the Conversion Transaction.

NEW YORK STATE BANK HOLDING COMPANY REGULATION

In addition to the federal regulation, a holdingngany controlling a state chartered savings bagkrired or doing business in New York
State also may be subject to regulation under #h& Mork State Banking Law. The term "bank holdirgnpany,” for the purposes of the
New York State Banking Law, is defined generallyrtclude any person, company or trust that direatlindirectly either controls tr
election of a majority of the directors or ownsntrols or holds with power to vote more than 10%haf voting stock of a bank holding
company or, if the Company is a banking institutianother banking institution, or 10% or more @& tfoting stock of each of two or more
banking
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institutions. In general, a bank holding compangtoalling, directly or indirectly, only one bankingstitution will not be deemed to be a b:
holding company for the purposes of the New Yokt&Banking Law. As such, neither the Company hemMutual Holding Company is
subject to supervision by the Department.

FEDERAL SECURITIES LAW

The common stock of the Company is registered thithSEC under the Exchange Act. The Company iestty the information, proxy
solicitation, insider trading restrictions and athequirements of the SEC under the Exchange Act.

The Company Common Stock held by persons who éfiatafs (generally officers, directors and priraligtockholders) of the Company may
not be resold without registration or unless soldécordance with certain resale restrictionshdf€Company meets specified current public
information requirements, each affiliate of the Qxamy is able to sell in the public market, withcegistration, a limited number of shares in
any three-month period.

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM

The Federal Reserve Board requires all depositmtytiitions to maintain noninterest-bearing reseatespecified levels against their
transaction accounts (primarily checking, money agament and NOW checking accounts). At Decembe2@15, the Bank was in
compliance with these reserve requirements.

FEDERAL COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT REGULATION

Under the Community Reinvestment Act, as amended"€CRA"), as implemented by FDIC regulations, @rsgs bank has a continuing and
affirmative obligation, consistent with its safedesound operation, to help meet the credit needs ehtire community, including low and
moderate income neighborhoods. The CRA does nablést specific lending requirements or programdif@ancial institutions nor does it
limit an institution's discretion to develop th@ég of products and services that it believes esé duited to its particular community,
consistent with the CRA. The CRA requires the FDORX;onnection with its examination of a savingstitition, to assess the institution's
record of meeting the credit needs of its commuaitgt to take such record into account in its evednaf certain applications by such
institution. The CRA requires the FDIC to providevatten evaluation of an institution's CRA perfante utilizing a four-tiered descriptive
rating system. The Bank's latest CRA rating wagstanding."

NEW YORK STATE COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT REGULATION

The Bank is also subject to provisions of the NewvKYState Banking Law which impose continuing afftraative obligations upon banking
institutions organized in New York State to seiive tredit needs of its local community ("NYCRA") iafh are substantially similar to those
imposed by the CRA. Pursuant to the NYCRA, a bauoktrfile an annual NYCRA report and copies of atldral CRA reports with the
Department. The NYCRA requires the Department t&arabiennial written assessment of a bank's camgdi with the NYCRA, utilizing a
four-tiered rating system and make such assessamaitable to the public. The NYCRA also requires Superintendent to consider a bank's
NYCRA rating when reviewing a bank's applicatioretage in certain transactions, including mergesset purchases and the establishi
of branch offices or automated teller machines, @ogides that such assessment may serve as ddrattie denial of any such application.

The Bank's NYCRA rating as of its latest examimaticas "satisfactory."
THE USA PATRIOT ACT

The USA PATRIOT Act was signed into law on OctoB6r 2001. The USA PATRIOT Act gives the federal gmment new powers to
address terrorist threats through
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enhanced domestic security measures, expandedlsuree powers, increased information sharing amédeened anti-money laundering
requirements. The USA PATRIOT Act also requiresfdderal banking agencies to take into considendtie effectiveness of controls
designed to combat money laundering activitieseiteanining whether to approve a merger or otheuia@ttpn application of a member
institution. Accordingly, if the Company were togage in a merger or other acquisitions, its costdasigned to combat money laundering
would be considered as part of the applicationggecThe Company and the Bank have establishedgslprocedures and systems desig
to comply with these regulations.

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 was signed intodawuly 30, 2002. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20Q2l&w that addresses, among other
issues, corporate governance, auditing and acecmyrgkecutive compensation, and enhanced and tidigtiosure of corporate information.
As directed by Section 302(a) of Sarbanes-Oxleyoh@002, the Company Chief Executive Officers &fdef Financial Officer are each
required to certify that the company's quarterlgt annual reports do not contain any untrue stateofemmaterial fact. The rules have sev
requirements, including having these officers égthat: they are responsible for establishing,ntening and regularly evaluating the
effectiveness of our internal controls; they hawsdmcertain disclosures to our auditors and thé& aachmittee of the Board of Directors
about our internal controls; and they have incluidéormation in our quarterly and annual reportewtttheir evaluation and whether there
have been significant changes in our internal a&1r in other factors that could significantlyeaft internal controls subsequent to the
evaluation. We will be subject to further reportiangd audit requirements with the year ending Deegrth, 2007 under the requirements of
Sarbanes-Oxley. We have existing policies, procesland systems designed to comply with these riégridaand are further enhancing and
documenting such policies, procedures and systerasgure continued compliance with these regulation

The company maintains an Internet website locat&d\&WW.PATHFINDERBANK.COM on which, among other tigis, the Company makes
available, free of charge, various reports thélksis with or furnishes to the Securities and ExamCommission, including its Annual Report
on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, andent reports on Form 8-K. The Company has alsdenaaailable on its website its

Audit Committee Charter, Governance Guidelines@ade of Ethics. These reports are made availabde@s as reasonably practicable after
these reports are filed with or furnished to theusities and Exchange Commission.

FEDERAL AND STATE TAXATION
FEDERAL TAXATION

The following discussion of federal taxation iseintled only to summarize certain pertinent fede@rine tax matters and is not a
comprehensive description of the tax rules appletdthe Company or the Bank.

BAD DEBT RESERVES. Prior to the 1996 Act, the Bamks permitted to establish a reserve for bad daiido make annual additions to
the reserve. These additions could, within spetifiemula limits, be deducted in arriving at thenkRa taxable income. As a result of the 1
Act, the Bank must use the small bank experienddaden computing its bad debt deduction beginniitly its 1996 Federal tax return.

TAXABLE DISTRIBUTIONS AND RECAPTURE. Prior to the9B6 Act, bad debt reserves created prior to Janlial988 were subject to
recapture into taxable income should the Bankt6aiheet certain thrift asset and definitionalteblisw federal legislation eliminated these
thrift related recapture rules. However, under enirtaw, pre-1988 reserves remain subject to racashould the Bank cease to retain a bank
or thrift charter or make certain non-dividend disitions.

MINIMUM TAX. The Internal Revenue Code imposes dtemative minimum tax ("AMT") at a rate of 20% arbase of regular taxable
income plus certain tax preferences ("alternativ@mum taxable income" or "AMTI"). The AMT is
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payable to the extent such AMTI is in excess oég@mption amount. Net operating losses can ofisebore than 90% of AMTI. Certain
payments of alternative minimum tax may be usectadits against regular tax liabilities in futureays.

NET OPERATING LOSS CARRYOVERS. A financial instiioih may carry back net operating losses to thegalieg two taxable years a
forward to the succeeding 20 taxable years. Thagipion applies to losses incurred in taxable ybaginning after August 5, 1997.

The Internal Revenue Service has examined thedeohemome tax return for the fiscal year ended 19892 New York State fiscal year-end
tax returns for 1998 through 1999 are currentlyarrakamination by the New York State Departmenfaation and Finance. See Note 1.
the Financial Statements.

STATE TAXATION

NEW YORK TAXATION. The Bank is subject to the Newolk State Franchise Tax on Banking Corporatiorenimnnual amount equal

the greater of (i) 8.0% of the Bank's "entire meioime" allocable to New York State during the tdeafear, or (ii) the applicable alternative
minimum tax. The alternative minimum tax is genlgréie greater of (a) 0.01% of the value of the BBsuiassets allocable to New York State
with certain modifications, (b) 3% of the Bank'#&anative entire net income" allocable to New Y &tate, or (c) $250. Entire net income is
similar to federal taxable income, subject to éartaodifications and alternative entire net incasequal to entire net income without cert
modifications. Net operating losses arising ind¢herent period can be carried forward to the sutioge20 taxable years.

The Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K may bessed on the Company's website at WWW.PATHFINDERRATOM.
ITEM 1A: RISK FACTORS

The material risks and uncertainties that managebwdieves affect the Company are described beldw.risks and uncertainties described
below are not the only ones facing the Company.ithafdhl risks and uncertainties that managemenbtsaware of or that management
currently deems immaterial may also impair the Canyfs business operations. This report is qualifigts entirety by these risk factors. If
any of the following risks actually occur, the Caanp's financial condition and results of operatioasld be materially and adversely
affected.

CHANGES IN INTEREST RATES CAN HAVE AN ADVERSE EFFEC T ON PROFITABILITY

The Company's earnings and cash flows are larggdgrtdent upon its net interest income. Net inténesime is the difference between
interest income earned on interest earning asgetsas loans and investment securities and intekgginse paid on interest bearing liabilities
such as deposits and borrowed funds. Interest aa¢elsighly sensitive to many factors that are belyilne Company's control, including
general economic conditions, competition, and pediof various governmental and regulatory agerauiek in particular, the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System. Changaserietary policy, including changes in interestsatould influence not only the inter
the Company receives on loans and investment $iesuaind the amount of interest it pays on depasitsborrowings, but such changes c
also affect (i) the Company's ability to origin&ians and obtain deposits,

(i) the fair value of the Company's financial assand liabilities, and (iii) the average duratafrthe Company's assets and liabilities. If the
interest rates paid on deposits and other borrasivimgyease at a faster rate than the interest ratessed on loans and other investments, the
Company's net interest income, and therefore egsncould be adversely affected. Earnings couldl ladsadversely affected if the interest
rates received on loans and other investmentsifalé quickly than the interest rates paid on depasid other borrowings.

Although management believes it has implementegtife asset and liability management strategiesdace the potential effects of char
in interest rates on the Company's results of djp@is any substantial,
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unexpected, prolonged change in market interess$ @iuld have a material adverse effect on the @ogpfinancial condition and results of
operations. See Item 7A, "Quantitative and Qual¢abDisclosures About Market Risk" located elsevehiarthis report for further discussion
related to the Company's management of interestisk.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES MAY BE INSUFFICIENT

The Company's loan customers may not repay thaslaccording to their terms and the collateraliseg the payment of these loans ma
insufficient to assure repayment. The Company mx@geence significant loan losses, which would haveaterial adverse effect on
earnings. Management makes various assumptiondgohents about the collectibility of the loan folib, including the creditworthiness
of borrowers and the value of the real estate dimer @ssets serving as collateral for the repaywiogns.

The Company maintains an allowance for loan lossas attempt to cover any loan losses inheretttérportfolio. In determining the size of
the allowance, management relies on an analysfeedban portfolio based on historical loss exparée volume and types of loans, trends in
classification, volume and trends in delinqueneied non-accruals, national and local economic ¢mmdi and other pertinent information. If
those assumptions are incorrect, the allowancermoaie sufficient to cover future loan losses adidstments may be necessary to allow for
different economic conditions or adverse developmenthe loan portfolio. In addition, regulatorgemcies review the Company's allowance
for loan losses and may require additions to tlenance based on their judgment about informatiailable to them at the time of their
examination. An increase in the Company's allowdacéan losses could reduce its earnings.

EXTENSIVE REGULATION AND SUPERVISION

The Company, primarily through its principal suliaites Pathfinder Bank and Pathfinder CommerciaikBand certain non-bank
subsidiaries, is subject to extensive federal aaid segulation and supervision. Banking regulatiare primarily intended to protect
depositors' funds, federal deposit insurance famdsthe banking system as a whole, not sharehol@leese regulations affect the Company's
lending practices, capital structure, investmeatfces, dividend policy and growth, among oth@rgh. The Company is also subject to a
number of federal laws, which, among other thimgguire it to lend to various sectors of the ecopamd population, and establish and
maintain comprehensive programs relating to antiveydaundering and customer identification. Congeesd federal regulatory agencies
continually review banking laws, regulations andigies for possible changes. Changes to statuggsjations or regulatory policies,
including changes in interpretation or implememtatdf statutes, regulations or policies, could@ffae Company in substantial and
unpredictable ways. Such changes could subjecttimpany to additional costs, limit the types offigial services and products it may offer
and/or increase the ability of non-banks to off@mpeting financial services and products, amongrathings. Failure to comply with laws,
regulations or policies could result in sanctiopgdgulatory agencies, civil money penalties andéputation damage, which could have a
material adverse effect on the Company's busiffiessicial condition and results of operations. Thempany's compliance with certain of
these laws will be considered by banking regulaigren reviewing bank merger and bank holding com@aquisitions. While the Company
has policies and procedures designed to prevensetyviolations, there can be no assurance tisht\salations will not occur. See the
"Regulation and Supervision" section in Item 1, $Biess" and Note 17 to consolidated financial statgs included in Item 8, "Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data", which areddagsewhere in this report.

LOCAL MARKET ECONOMIES

The Company's business is concentrated in Oswedjpans of Onondaga counties of New York State. @dwnomy in the Company's
market area is manufacturing-oriented and deperatettie State University of New York College at @gw. As a result, its financial
condition, results of operations and cash flowssaitgect to changes if there are changes in theoeaiz conditions in these areas. A
prolonged period of economic recession or otheees/economic conditions in one or both of thesasacould have a negative impact or
Company. The Company can provide no assurancedhditions in its market area economies will ndederate in the future and that such
deterioration would not have a material adversectin the Company.
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COMPETITION IN THE FINANCIAL SERVICES INDUSTRY

The Company faces substantial competition in @aarof its operations from a variety of differeampetitors, many of which are larger and
may have more financial resources. The Company etespwith other providers of financial servicestsas other bank holding companies,
commercial and savings banks, savings and loarciasiems, credit unions, money market and mutuatif) mortgage companies, title
agencies, asset managers, insurance companiesgaogiag list of other local, regional and natioiradtitutions which offer financial
services. If the Company is unable to compete #iiely, it will lose market share and income gemeddrom loans, deposits, and other
financial products will decline.

ITEM 1B: UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None
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ITEM 2: PROPERTIES

The Bank conducts its business through its maicefbcated in Oswego, New York, and six full seevbranch offices located in Oswego
County. The following table sets forth certain imf@tion concerning the main office and each branffibe of the Bank at December 31,
2005. The aggregate net book value of the Bank®ises and equipment was $8.0 million at Decembge2@05. For additional information
regarding the Bank's properties, see Note 7 tos\oté&inancial Statements

LOCATION OPENING DATE OWNE D/LEASED

Main Office 1874 Owne d
214 West First Street
Oswego, New York 13126

Plaza Branch 1989 Owne d (1)
Route 104, Ames Plaza
Oswego, New York 13126

Mexico Branch 1978 Owne d
Norman & Main Streets
Mexico, New York 13114

Oswego East Branch 1994 Owne d
34 East Bridge Street
Oswego, New York 13126

Lacona Branch 2002 Owne d
1897 Harwood Drive

Lacona, New York 13083

Fulton Branch 2003 Owne d(2)
5 West First Street South

Fulton, New York 13069

Central Square Branch 2005 Owne d

3025 East Ave
Central Square, New York 13036

(1) The building is owned; the underlying landeased with an annual rent of $19,000
(2) The building is owned; the underlying landeased with an annual rent of $23,000

ITEM 3: LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are various claims and lawsuits to whichGbenpany is periodically involved incident to therfmany's business. In the opinion of
management such claims and lawsuits in the aggregatnot expected to have a material adverse inopabe Company's consolidated
financial condition and results of operations.

ITEM 4: SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted during the fourth quastdiscal 2005 to a vote of the Company's shamrsl.
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PART Il

ITEM 5: MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON STOCK, RELAT ED SECURITY HOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.'s common stock curremtigdés on the Nasdaq SmallCap market under the $yPBbIC". There were 415
shareholders of record as of March 3, 2006. THeviahg table sets forth the high and low closing prices and dividends paid per share of
common stock for the periods indicated:

DIVIDEND
QUARTER ENDED: HIGH LOW PAID

December 31, 2005 $15.050 $12.360 $ 0.1025
September 30, 2005 15.250 13.050 0.1025
June 30, 2005 18.000 14.250 0.1025
March 31, 2005 17.950 16.250 0.1025

December 31, 2004 $18.500 $16.250 $ 0.1025
September 30, 2004 16.630 14.770 0.1025
June 30, 2004 19.070 15.050 0.100
March 31, 2004 20.999 17.010 0.100

DIVIDENDS AND DIVIDEND HISTORY

The Company has historically paid regular quartedsh dividends on its common stock, and the BofRirectors presently intends to
continue the payment of regular quarterly cashdéinds, subject to the need for those funds for siefivice and other purposes. Payment of
dividends on the common stock is subject to deteation and declaration by the Board of Directord aiill depend upon a number of
factors, including capital requirements, regulatamjtations on the payment of dividends, PathfinBank and its subsidiaries results of
operations and financial condition, tax consideraij and general economic conditions. The Compamytsal holding company, Pathfinder
Bancorp, M.H.C., may elect to waive or receive diérids each time the Company declares a divideraleldetion to waive the dividend
receipt requires prior non-objection of the OffafeThrift Supervision. Pathfinder Bancorp, M.H.Ge&ed to waive its dividend for the
quarters ended March 31, 2005 and September 38, BQ®ing 2006, Pathfinder Bancorp, M.H.C. expé¢otaaive two quarterly dividends.
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ITEM 6: SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. ("the Company") is thegmaicompany of Pathfinder Bank and Pathfinder Safurrust |. Pathfinder Bank has
three operating subsidiaries - Pathfinder CommEBaak, Pathfinder REIT Inc., and Whispering Oale/Blopment, Inc.

The following selected consolidated financial degés forth certain financial highlights of the Caamp and should be read in conjunction \
the consolidated financial statements and relatéeisnand the "Management's Discussion and Anaby$tgnancial Condition and Results of
Operations" included elsewhere in this annual repoi-orm 10-K.

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

YEAR END (In thousands)

Total assets $29 6,948 $302,037 $277,940 $279,056 $244,514
Loans receivable, net 18 7,889 185,125 187,002 179,001 162,588
Deposits 23 6,377 236,672 206,894 204,522 169,589
Equity 2 0,928 21,826 21,785 23,230 22,185
FOR THE YEAR (In thousands)

Net interest income $ 8,742 $ 8,905 $ 9,337 $ 8,789 $ 7,853
Noninterest income 2,040 3,047 2,608 2,094 1,864
Core noninterest income (a) 2,333 1,996 1,740 1,511 1,355
Noninterest expense 1 0,060 9,307 9,094 7,964 6,863

Net income 462 1,405 1,652 1,156 1,602

PER SHARE

Net income (basic) $ 0.19 $ 058 $ 068 $ 045 $ 0.62
Book value 8.50 8.91 8.96 8.90 8.64
Tangible book value (b) 6.77 7.04 7.03 7.02 7.63

Cash dividends declared 0.410 0.405 0.40 0.30 0.26
RATIOS

Return on average assets 0.15% 0.47% 0.59% 0.45% 0.68%
Return on average equity 2.16 6.45 7.61 5.01 7.34

Return on average tangible equity (b) 2.72 8.17 9.77 7.03 8.29
Average equity to average assets 6.95 7.29 7.77 8.94 9.22
Dividend payout ratio (c) 1 4784 4754 39.41 36.76  28.37
Allowance for loan losses to loans receivable 0.89 0.98 0.91 0.82 1.03

Net interest rate spread 3.07 3.22 3.53 3.47 3.35
Noninterest income to average assets 0.66 1.02 0.93 0.81 0.79

Core noninterest income to average assets (a) 0.76 0.67 0.62 0.59 0.57
Noninterest expense to average assets 3.28 3.12 3.26 3.09 2.90
Efficiency ratio (d) 93.30 77.87 76.13 73.18 70.61

(a) Core noninterest income excludes net (lossEsp®n sales and impairment of investment seearénd net (losses) gains on sales of |
and foreclosed real estate.

(b) Tangible equity excludes intangible assets.

(c) The dividend payout ratio is calculated usingd&nds declared and not waived by the Companytiah holding company parent,
Pathfinder Bancorp, M.H.C., divided by net income.

(d) The efficiency ratio is calculated as noninséexpense divided by the sum of net interest ircand noninterest income.
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ITEM 7: MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
INTRODUCTION

Throughout the Management's Discussion and Ana({siB&A™) the term, "the Company", refers to thersmlidated entity of Pathfinder
Bancorp, Inc. Pathfinder Bank and Pathfinder Stayutrust | are wholly owned subsidiaries of Patbér Bancorp, Inc., however, Pathfinder
Statutory Trust | is deconsolidated for reportinggmses (see Note 10). Pathfinder Commercial Baathfinder REIT, Inc. and Whispering
Oaks Development, Inc. represent wholly owned slidses of Pathfinder Bank. At December 31, 20G&hfnder Bancorp, M.H.C, the
Company's mutual holding company parent, whoseitiet are not included in the MD&A, held 64.3%tbé Company's outstanding
common stock and the public held 35.7%.

When used in this Annual Report the words or predadl likely result”, "are expected to", "will edinue”, "is anticipated”, "estimate",
"project” or similar expression are intended tantify "forward-looking statements" within the meagiof the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. Such statements are subjectittin risks and uncertainties, including, amotigeothings, changes in economic
conditions in the Company's market area, changpslioies by regulatory agencies, fluctuationsniterest rates, demand for loans in the
Company's market areas and competition, that arallde actual results to differ materially from dvigtal earnings and those presently
anticipated or projected. The Company wishes téi@aueaders not to place undue reliance on anly frevard-looking statements, which
speak only as of the date made. The Company wishedvise readers that the factors listed abovédaftect the Company's financial
performance and could cause the Company's actudtsdor future periods to differ materially frosmy opinions or statements expressed
with respect to future periods in any current stegets.

The Company does not undertake, and specificaltlirdes any obligation, to publicly release the fessaf any revisions, which may be made
to any forward-looking statements to reflect evemtsircumstances after the date of such statenoentsreflect the occurrence of anticipated
or unanticipated events.

The Company's business strategy is to operatevad-gapitalized, profitable and independent comityubank dedicated to providing value-
added products and services to our customers. @gnehe Company has sought to implement thigetraby emphasizing retail deposits as
its primary source of funds and maintaining a saisal part of its assets in locally-originatedidestial first mortgage loans, loans to
business enterprises operating in its marketsjramyestment securities. Specifically, the Compauusiness strategy incorporates the
following elements: (i) operating as an independ@mmunity-oriented financial institution; (ii) meaining capital in excess of regulatory
requirements; (iii) emphasizing investment in oadeur family residential mortgage loans, loanstaall businesses and investment
securities; and (iv) maintaining a strong retapalst base.

The Company's net income is primarily dependeritonet interest income, which is the differencen®en interest income earned on its
investments in mortgage and other loans, investiserurities and other assets, and its cost of foadsisting of interest paid on deposits and
other borrowings. The Company's net income alsdfécted by its provision for loan losses, as vaslby the amount of noninterest income,
including income from fees, service charges andigag rights, net gains and losses on sales afrétexs, loans and foreclosed real estate,
and noninterest expense such as employee compemaati benefits, occupancy and equipment costs pitatessing costs and income ta
Earnings of the Company also are affected sigmitlgadby general economic and competitive conditjgregticularly changes in market
interest rates, government policies and actiomre@ilatory authorities, which events are beyoncctiverol of the Company. In particular, the
general level of market rates tends to be highttical.
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APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company's consolidated financial statementpr@mgared in accordance with accounting princigkrserally accepted in the United Stz
and follow practices within the banking industrypplication of these principles requires managen®ntake estimates, assumptions and
judgments that affect the amounts reported inithential statements and accompanying notes. Thetiseates, assumptions and judgme
are based on information available as of the ditieedfinancial statements; accordingly, as thisrimation changes, the financial statements
could reflect different estimates, assumptionsjaddments. Certain policies inherently have a gneadliance on the use of estimates,
assumptions and judgments and as such have argpeatability of producing results that could betenglly different than originally
reported. Estimates, assumptions and judgmentseziessary when assets and liabilities are reqtorbd recorded at fair value or when an
asset or liability needs to be recorded continggain a future event. Carrying assets and liaksliéiefair value inherently results in more
financial statement volatility. The fair values antbrmation used to record valuation adjustmeatscErtain assets and liabilities are base
guoted market prices or are provided by other thady sources, when available. When third partgrmation is not available, valuation
adjustments are estimated in good faith by manageme

The most significant accounting policies followgdthe Company are presented in Note 1 to the cmtael financial statements. These
policies, along with the disclosures presentedhéndther financial statement notes and in thisudision, provide information on how
significant assets and liabilities are valued i financial statements and how those values asgrdeted. Based on the valuation techniques
used and the sensitivity of financial statement am®to the methods, assumptions and estimateslyimdgethose amounts, management has
identified the determination of the allowance foauh losses to be the accounting area that reghieamost subjective and complex judgme
and as such could be the most subject to revisorew information becomes available.

The allowance for loan losses represents managengstitnate of probable loan losses inherent ioidwe portfolio. Determining the amount
of the allowance for loan losses is consideredtaraccounting estimate because it requiresifsogmt judgment and the use of estimates
related to the amount and timing of expected futaigh flows on impaired loans, estimated lossgsoois of homogeneous loans based on
historical loss experience, and consideration afecit economic trends and conditions, all of whitdly be susceptible to significant change.
The loan portfolio also represents the largesttdgpe on the consolidated balance sheet. Notetietaonsolidated financial statements
describes the methodology used to determine tbevatice for loan losses, and a discussion of ther&adriving changes in the amount of
allowance for loan losses is included in this répor

The Company carries all of its security investmexttfair value with any unrealized gains or losggmrted net of tax as an adjustment to
shareholders' equity. Based on management's assgissthDecember 31, 2005, the Company did not &ydsecurity that had a fair value
decline that is currently expected to be other tieamporary. Consequently, any declines in a spesécurity's fair value below amortized ¢
have not been provided for in the income statemiégrg. Company's ability to fully realize the valddte investment in various securities,
including corporate debt securities, is dependarthe underlying creditworthiness of the issuingamization.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

During 2005, the Company focused on expandingréadh network in Oswego County by opening a futViee branch in Central Square,
New York in June of 2005. Total deposits for thevianch at December 31, 2005 were $6.3 milliorialfdeposits for the Compat
remained relatively consistent at $236.4 milliolDacember 31, 2005 while the average balance afsiespincreased $8.1 million to $220.5
million at 2005. The Company will continue to foaus building its market share in Central Square @kloping more core deposit
relationships in its existing markets during 2006.

Total assets decreased 2%, primarily in the investreecurities portfolio and interest-earning dépo$he loan portfolio increased 1% as net
growth in the commercial real estate, commercidl@nsumer loan portfolios were partially offsetébglecrease in the residential real estate
portfolio. Asset quality
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continued to improve during 2006. Nonperforminge&s$o total assets was 0.81% at December 31, @@pared to 0.88% in the prior year.
The improvement in asset quality is attributabléhoenhancement of collection procedures andetb@ution through foreclosure and charge-
off of two commercial lending relationships. Then@many expects to concentrate on continued comnenciigage and commercial loan
growth during 2006.

Net income for 2005 was $462,000, or $0.19 perester compared to $1.4 million, or $0.58 per shiar004. Net interest marg
compression; an impairment charge and strategéefotaken in the investment securities portfolie;additional costs of operating a new
branch; and personnel restructuring charges imgaaenings negatively during 2005. An improvemardsset quality and an increase in
service charges on deposit accounts partially bffsese charges to income.

The Company experienced net interest margin corajmreso 3.21% in 2005 from 3.35% in 2004. Net iagtiincome decreased 2% to $8.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2005. ThenBany expects continued pressure on core earamglort-term rates are anticipated to
continue to rise and loniggrm rates are expected to remain relatively ungbdnThis interest rate environment impacts the @omw's liability
sensitive balance sheet negatively as depositbamdwings reprice more rapidly than loans and stwent securities. The Company has
implemented an asset/liability management strateg@pmbat the current interest rate environmentiding the growth of more rate sensitive
commercial real estate and commercial loan podfdaticreasing core deposit relationships and gjieéeto mitigate the rising cost of depos

The Company's efforts to enhance other interesinigcduring 2005 by increasing the customer depasi¢ and increasing overdraft, retur
check and non-sufficient fund charges to be mdieative with local competition resulted in a 36fciiease in service charges on deposit
accounts during 2005. The Company opened a nevelbiarCentral Square, New York in June of 2005. Brench successfully gathered
$6.3 million in deposits in the first seven monthise Company will continue to focus on growing market share in Central Square. Sale
and employee benefits and building occupancy dnsteased primarily from the addition of the newartrth combined with fourth quarter
personnel realignment costs. The Company expeletsesaand benefits and building occupancy to iaseg as a full year of Central Square
operations will be reflected in 2006. The Compaogtmues to explore cost saving strategies to mgrthe growth of other operating
expenses.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net income for 2005 was $462,000, a decrease &,898, or 67%, compared to net income of $1.4 amilfior 2004. Basic earnings per st
decreased to $0.19 per share for the year endeehitier 31, 2005 from $0.58 per share for the yede@December 31, 2004. Return on
average equity decreased 67% to 2.16% in 2005 &d®P6 in 2004.

Net interest income, on a tax equivalent basisiedmed $106,000, or 1%, primarily resulting froteiast rate spread compression as sh
term cost of funds are repricing at higher ratesgiathan longer term assets. Provision for loaede at December 31, 2005 decreased 58%
reflecting improved asset quality during 2005, comeld with slower loan growth. The Company experggha 16% increase in other income,
net of securities gains and losses, primarilyaiteble to increased deposit levels and the rekedce charges associated with checking
accounts, combined with an increase in the valu®mok owned life insurance. Operating expensesasad 8% due to the hiring of additic
staff and related operating costs at the new CleBtyaare branch, which opened in June of 2005 galdth increased data processing
expenses and an increase in professional and sghéces.

NET INTEREST INCOME

Net interest income is the Company's primary soafaerating income for payment of operating exgesrand providing for possible lo
losses. It is the amount by which interest earmethterest-earning deposits, loans and investmemirties, exceeds the interest paid on
deposits and other borrowed money. Changes imterest income and the net interest margin ratialtérom the interaction between the
volume and composition of earning assets and isttidr@aring liabilities, and their respective yietosl funding costs.
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Net interest income, on a -equivalent basis, decreased $106,000, or 1%,.tréfllion for the year ended December 31, 2005;campared

to the year ended December 31, 2004. The Compaet/laterest margin for 2005 decreased to 3.21%h B8B5% in 2004. The decrease in
net interest income is attributable to increasesiscof interesbearing liabilities and was partially offset byiaorease in the yields on interi
earning assets. The average balance of interasingaassets grew $8.2 million, or 3%, during 2008 the average balance of interbsgring
deposits increased by $8.1 million, or 4%. Thedase in the average balance of interest-bearibijties primarily resulted from an increase
in the average balance of retail and municipal dépoAs a result, interest income, on a tax-edeitebasis, increased $677,000 during 2005.
Interest expense on deposits increased $680,00@%r as the cost of deposits rose to 1.96% in 2@05 1.71% in 2004. In addition to the
increase in the cost of deposits, interest expenderrowings also increased by $103,000, or 5&6nfthe prior year.

In comparison, net interest income decreased $805dF 4%, on a tax-equivalent basis, from 2003004. The decrease in net interest
income was comprised of a decrease in interestmeanf $751,000, or 5%, partially offset by a deseem interest expense of $375,000, or
6%. The average balance of interest-earning ageats$14.6 million during 2004 and the average tegeof interest-bearing deposits
increased by $20.7 million. The increase in the@ye balance of interest-bearing liabilities priityaresulted from attracting new municipal
deposit customers. The decrease in the averagkonehterest-earning assets by 60 basis pointdteelsirom the downward repricing of
loans from refinancing and originations in the louweerest rate environment and the purchase of6d38lion in investment securities at
lower yields than the existing portfolio.
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AVERAGE BALANCES AND RATES

The following table sets forth information concengpiaverage interest-earning assets and interegtigéiabilities and the yields and rates
thereon. Interest income and resultant yield infiom in the table is on a fully tax-equivalentisassing marginal federal income tax rates of
34%. Averages are computed on the daily averagmbalfor each month in the period divided by theber of days in the period. Yields ¢
amounts earned include loan fees. Non-accrual Ibams been included in interest-earning assetsuposes of these calculations.

2005 2004
Average Avera ge
Average Yield/ Average Yiel d/
(Dollars in thousands) Balance Interest Cost Balance Interest Cos t
Interest-earning assets:
Real estate loans residential $121,875 $ 7,092 5.82% $124,734 $ 7,491 6. 01%
Real estate loans commercial 29,385 2,181 7.42% 30,958 2,254 7. 28%
Commercial loans 17,563 1,135 6.46% 16,060 901 5. 61%
Consumer loans 19,257 1,418 7.36% 17,427 1,194 6. 85%
Taxable investment securities 74,496 2,728 3.66% 65,480 2,220 3. 39%
Tax-exempt investment securities 13,202 681 5.16% 8,603 488 5. 67%
Interest-earning deposits 3,041 71 2.33% 7,338 81 1. 10%
Total interest-earning assets $278,819 $ 15,306 5.49% $270,600 $ 14,629 5. 41%
Noninterest-earning assets:
Other assets 31,455 30,236
Allowance for loan losses (1,835 ) (1,792)
Net unrealized gains
on available for sale securities (1,307 ) (515)
Total Assets $307,132 $298,529
Interest-bearing liabilities:
NOW accounts $ 19,877 $ 107 0.54% $20,808 $ 135 O. 65%
Money management accounts 41,380 835 2.02% 40,775 567 1. 39%
Savings and club accounts 65,558 291 0.44% 68,046 453 0. 67%
Time deposits 93,732 3,086 3.29% 82,769 2,484 3. 00%
Junior subordinated debentures 5,155 351 6.72% 5,155 251 4. 80%
Borrowings 37,348 1,686 4.51% 37,674 1,683 4. 47%
Total Interest-bearing liabilities $263,050 $ 6,356 2.42% $255,227 $ 5573 2. 18%
Noninterest-bearing liabilities:
Demand deposits 19,324 17,974
Other liabilities 3,416 3,556
Total liabilities 285,790 276,757
Shareholders' equity 21,342 21,772
Total liabilities & shareholders' equity $307,132 $298,529
Net interest income $ 8,950 $ 9,056
Net interest rate spread 3.07% 3. 22%
Net interest margin 3.21% 3. 35%
Ratio of average interest-earning assets
to average interest-bearing liabilities 105.99% 106. 02%
2003
Average
Average Yield/

(Dollars in thousands) Balance Interest  Cost

Interest-earning assets:

Real estate loans residential $129,687 $ 8,346 6.44%

Real estate loans commercial 31,122 2,480 7.97%

Commercial loans 14,181 798 6.37%

Consumer loans 15,787 1,225 7.76%

Taxable investment securities 54,115 2,193 4.05%

Tax-exempt investment securities 7,869 305 3.87%

Interest-earning deposits 3,252 33 0.99%

Total interest-earning assets $256,013 $ 15,380 6.01%

Noninterest-earning assets:

Other assets 24,859

Allowance for loan losses (1,591 )

Net unrealized gains



on available for sale securities 52

Total Assets $279,333

Interest-bearing liabilities:

NOW accounts $ 17,663 $ 140 0.79%
Money management accounts 21,788 248 1.14%

Savings and club accounts 66,481 511 0.77%

Time deposits 85,751 2,852 3.33%
Junior subordinated debentures 5,000 236 4.66%

Borrowings 43,490 1,961 4.51%
Total Interest-bearing liabilities $240,173 $ 5948 2.48%
Noninterest-bearing liabilities:

Demand deposits 16,345

Other liabilities 1,098

Total liabilities 257,616

Shareholders' equity 21,717

Total liabilities & shareholders' equity $279,333

Net interest income $ 9,432
Net interest rate spread 3.53%
Net interest margin 3.68%

Ratio of average interest-earning assets
to average interest-bearing liabilities 106.60%

INTEREST INCOME

Changes in interest income are derived as a reftile volume of loans and securities, as meadoyathanges in the respective average
balance and by the related yields on those balahtesest income on a tax-equivalent basis in@@&%7,000, or 5%. Average loans
decreased 1% in 2005, with yields increasing 3shasints to 6.29% The Company's average residantaigage loan portfolio decreased
$2.9 million, or 2%, when comparing the year 2005 t
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2004. The average yield on the residential mortdage portfolio decreased 19 basis points to 5.822005 from 6.01% in 2004. The $20.2
million in residential mortgage originations weraae at lower rates than the weighted average gfdlte existing portfolio. An increase in
the average balance of consumer loans of $1.8omijlbr 11%, resulted from an increase in home gdpi#ns. The average yield increased 51
basis points, to 7.36% from 6.85% in 2004, prinyanieésulting from the increase in home equity lgavisich are based on the Bank's prime
rate. Average commercial loans increased 9% whéddx-equivalent yield increased 85 basis pom&46% in 2005 compared to 5.61%, in
2004. Increases in the average balance of resideatl estate, consumer and commercial loan piasfavere partially offset by a decrease in
the average balance of commercial real estateghiortif $1.6 million, or 5%.

Average loans decreased $1.6 million in 2004, aitérage yields declining 48 basis points to 6.26k& interest income on loans decreased
$1.0 million, or 8%, in 2004 compared to 2003. f#a comparable periods, average residential moetimns decreased $5.0 million, or 4%,
average consumer loans increased $1.6 millionQ®s, partially offset by a decrease in average corniadoans by $1.9 million, or 13%,

and a decrease in average commercial mortgage bya$t64,000, or 1%. Loans were originated at losaégs than in the prior period and a
large volume of existing mortgages had their rateslified downward or were refinanced at lower rates

Interest income on investment securities incre268d from 2005, resulting from an increase in therage balance of investment securities
(taxable and tax-exempt) by $13.6 million, or 1886$87.7 million in 2005 from $74.1 million in 200%he tax-equivalent yield increased 23
basis points to 3.89% in 2005 from 3.66% in 20@&uléng primarily from the purchase of $23.4 miflie investment securities during 2005
at higher yields than the existing investment midfcombined with the sale of $4.3 million in lomgelding investment securities from the
portfolio in the fourth quarter of 2005.

Average investment securities (taxable and tax-@teim 2004 increased by $12.1 million, with anrggse in tax-equivalent interest income
from investments of $210,000, or 8%, compared @320 he average tax-equivalent yield of the poidfdeclined 37 basis points, to 3.66%
from 4.03%. The increase in the average balanaevestment securities and the decrease in thegak-glent yield resulted from the
significant investment purchases at lower yiel@mtthe existing investment portfolio.

INTEREST EXPENSE

Changes in interest expense are derived as a oéshi volume of deposits and borrowings as meakhy changes in the respective average
balances and by the related interest costs on thedaaces. Interest expense increased $783,00@%6yin 2005, when compared to 2004.
The increase in the cost of funds resulted frormarease in the average cost of interest-bearaigliies of 24 basis points, to 2.42% in 2005
from 2.18% at 2004, combined with a $7.8 millioorigase in the average balance of interest-bedahijties during 2005. The average cost
of deposits increased 25 basis points to 1.96%nd@005 from 1.71% for 2004. The increase in tts obaverage deposits resulted from
rising short-term interest rates. The average abstoney management accounts increased 63 basits @oid the cost of time deposits
increased 29 basis points. The average balancepoisits increased $8.1 million to $220.5 millior2@05 from $212.4 million at 2004. The
increase in the average balance of deposits ptyrrasulted from a $2.9 million, or 11%, increaseierage balance of municipal deposits as
the Company continues to garner new relationshipsaa increase in the average balance of retadsiespresulting primarily from the new
branch in Central Square. The cost of junior suibateéd debentures increased 192 basis points asioginterest expense by $100,000.

Interest expense decreased $375,000, or 6%, in@@pared to 2003. The average cost of interesirfaebabilities declined 30 basis points
during the 12 months ended December 31, 2004.
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RATE/VOLUME ANALYSIS

Net interest income can also be analyzed in tefrttsedmpact of changing interest rates on int-earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities and changing the volume or amount &fs assets and liabilities. The following tabler@epnts the extent to which changes in
interest rates and changes in the volume of int@@sing assets and interest-bearing liabiliti@echaffected the Company's interest income
and interest expense during the periods indicdtdéormation is provided in each category with redge: (i) changes attributable to changes
in volume (change in volume multiplied by prioregt

(i) changes attributable to changes in rate (chang rate multiplied by prior volume); and (iigtal increase or decrease. Changes attribt
to both rate and volume have been allocated ratably

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2005 VS. 20 04 2004 VS. 2003
INCREASE/(DECREASE) DUE TO INCREASE/(DECREASE) DUE TO
TOTAL TOTAL
| NCREASE INCREASE

In thousands) VOLUME RATE (DE CREASE) VOLUME RATE (DECREASE)
INTEREST INCOME:
Real estate loans residential ~ $(168) $(231) $(399) $(311) $ (544) $(855)
Real estate loans commercial (116) 43 (73) (13) (213) (226)
Commercial loans 89 145 234 81 22 103
Consumer loans 131 93 224 120 (151) (31)
Taxable investment securities 322 186 508 417 (390) 27
Tax-exempt investment securities 240  (47) 193 31 152 183
Interest-earning deposits (65) 55 (10) 45 3 48
Total interest income 433 244 677 370 (1,121) (751)
INTEREST EXPENSE:
NOW accounts 6) (22) (28) 22 27) (5
Money management accounts 8 260 268 255 64 319
Savings and club accounts (16) (146) (162) 12 (70) (58)
Time deposits 348 254 602 (96) (272) (368)
Junior subordinated debentures - 100 100 8 7 15
Borrowings (13) 16 3 (262) (16) (278)
Total interest expense 321 462 783 (61) (314) (375)
Net change in net interest income $ 112 $(218) $(106) $431 $ (807) $(376)
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NONINTEREST INCOME

The Company's noninterest income is primarily casgat of fees on deposit account balances and taoiss, loan servicing, commissions,
and net gains on securities, loans and foreclosaidestate.

The following table sets forth certain information noninterest income for the years indicated.

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(In thousands) 2005 2004 2003
Service charges on deposit accounts $1,318 $ 967 $ 818
Loan servicing fees 215 256 282
Increase in the value of bank owned life insurance 218 175 171
Other charges, commissions and fees 582 598 469

Core noninterest income $2,333 $1,996 $1,740
Net (losses) gains on sales and impairment of inves tment securities  (205) 772 542
Net (losses) gains on sales of loans and foreclosed real estate (88) 279 326
Total noninterest income $2,040 $3,047 $2,608

Noninterest income in 2005 decreased 33%, when aoedpo 2004, as a result of a 17% increase inrmmménterest income and a 12¢
decrease in the non-core items, net (losses) gaissles and impairment of investment securitielsrant (losses) gains on sales of loans and
foreclosed real estate. Service charges on depasiunts increased 36% as the number of depositiatincreased, a full year's effect of a
fee enhancement program, increased ATM usage fekmeareased internet banking usage. The valuaif bwned life insurance increased
25%. These reductions in core noninterest inconre wiset by a decrease in loan servicing fees666,1primarily due to a reduction in fees
associated with mortgage and commercial loan laéeges, and internal mortgage legal fees. Invedtsemurity losses increased $977,000,
when compared to the 2004 period resulting primdrdm net gains recognized in prior years combinitti a $193,000 impairment loss
recognized on an equity security and fourth quaniegstment portfolio restructurings. Net lossedtmnsale of loans/foreclosed real estate
increased $367,000 when compared to the prior psaa,result of a $215,000 reduction in the gaingeized on the sale of loans to the
secondary market as the volume of loans sold dsedglay 25%, combined with adjustments made to &mmieé Mae custodial accounts to
cover additional interest due caused by early fisyad sold and serviced loans. Additionally, a $0D gain was recognized in 2004 on the
remaining building lots held by Whispering Oaks Blepment, Inc.

Noninterest income in 2004 increased 17%, compar@@03, as a result of a 10% increase in coreme@st income and a 42% increas
the non-core items, net gains on sales and impairnfenvestment securities. The increase in thalmr of deposit accounts and the
introduction of new services to customers primagitgounted for the $149,000 increase in servicegelsaon deposit accounts when comp
to 2003. A $129,000 increase in other charges, dssioms and fees primarily resulted from recordddg,000 in New York State grant
income associated with a company wide Leadershaming initiative program, along with increaseddign ATM usage fees and fees
associated with the company's Visa debit card.gd&ts on the sale of loans/foreclosed real estteedsed $47,000, or 14%, resulting
primarily from a $40,000 reduction in the gain rgeized on the sale of loans to the secondary mask#ie volume of loans sold decreased
47%. Investment security gains increased $230,8082%, when compared to the 2003 period. Investsecurity net gains were recorded
on the sale of equity and corporate debt securities
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NONINTEREST EXPENSE

The following table sets forth certain information noninterest expense for the years indicated.

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
(In thousands) 2005 20 04 2003
Salaries and employee benefits  $5,123  $4,7 98 $4,455
Building occupancy 1,178 1.1 69 1,159
Data processing expenses 1,226 9 81 868
Professional and other services 818 6 82 770
Amortization of intangible asset 223 2 23 223
Other expenses 1,492 1,4 54 1,619
Total noninterest expense $10,060 $9,3 07 $9,094

Noninterest expenses increased $753,000, or 8%théat2 months ended December 31, 2005 when cothpa004. Salaries and employ
benefits increased 7% in 2005 primarily resultimapf incremental salary raises, the staffing ofw @entral Square branch and fourth que
personnel realignment costs. The 1% increase idihgioccupancy is primarily due to the operatiéth@ new Central Square branch for 7
months of 2005. The 25% increase in data processipgnses during 2005 related to increased defimtixpense, an increase in internet
banking expense due to increased volume of usengdsed check processing charges due to an iedredeposit accounts, and the increi
annual maintenance expense on our core procesg@tans Professional and other services increas&dd® to outside consulting charges
for performance management, a process improvenmegtgm, and strategic planning projects, along witheased advertising fees for the
new Central Square branch. The 3% increase in ofienating expenses during 2005 resulted priméoiy the charge off of losses on ATM
transactions and bad checks, additional ORE expassmciated with taxes and maintenance of pregettie write off of property and
equipment at our former Fulton Branch, as wellragharease in audits and exams. These expenseoffegeby decreases in postage
expense, office supply expense and lower mortgag@rding taxes due to decreased loan volume.

Noninterest expenses increased $213,000, or 2%héat2 months ended December 31, 2004 when cothpa003. Salaries and employ
benefits increased 8% in 2004 primarily resultimapf incremental salary raises and promotions, itieghof a Human Resource Manager
increased pension and health insurance costs. 3¥tericrease in data processing expenses during re0itéd to additional depreciation
costs associated with a full year's operation efrtbw Fulton branch, combined with a 15% increassternet banking usage, additional
check processing charges due to a 5% increasesiarner volume from a checking account acquisitimymm, and additional ATM
processing charges related to the installationredva ATM machine and products and supplies reguftiom the increase in customer volui
Professional and other services decreased 11%oduestuction in legal fees relating to a foreatbgmperty in 2003 not recurring in 2004,
and a reduction in mortgage consulting fees airsé personnel were used to perform work that wigially contracted. These reductions
were offset by an increase in consulting fees aatxtwith the checking account acquisition progeard expenses associated with a
leadership training program. Corresponding gracmme recorded in other income offset the leadentshiping program expenses. The 10%
decrease in other operating expenses during 2@0dted primarily from a $164,000 expense relatmgérsonnel realignment in 2003.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

In 2005, the Company reported an income tax beak$61,000 compared to income tax expense of $802n 2004. The income tax ben:
in 2005 resulted from the reduction in pretax ineowhile income earned on tax-exempt investmentri@suand bank-owned life insurance
increased. The effective tax rate decreased t@4{122005 compared to 26% in 2004. The decreatieierffective tax rate resulted primarily
from an increase in tax-exempt interest incomerapgrtion to total taxable income. The Company fiealsiced its tax
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rate from the statutory rate primarily through tvenership of tax-exempt investment securities, lamied life insurance and other tax
saving strategies. Enactment of proposed state¢gsiation regarding Real Estate Investment Trugtsld increase the state tax rate for the
Company.

Income tax expense decreased $99,000 to $502,0@0efgear ended December 31, 2004 as comparegDio®O0 in the prior year. The
decrease in income tax expense reflected lowetgpré@zcome during the year. The Company's effedtixerate remained at 26% in 2004 and
27% in 2003.

CHANGES IN FINANCIAL CONDITION
INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The investment portfolio represents 29% of the Camyfs earning assets and is designed to genefaterable rate of return consistent with
safety of principal while assisting the Companyneeting the liquidity needs of the loan and depasérations and managing the Company's
interest rate risk strategies. All of the Companyw&stments are classified as available for S&ie. Company invests in investment securities
consisting primarily of mortgage-backed securitges;urities issued by United States Governmentaggand sponsored enterprises, state
and municipal obligations, mutual funds, equitywséies, investment grade corporate debt instrusjeartd common stock issued by the
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (FHLBNY). By &sting in these types of assets, the Company redheecredit risk of its asset ba
but must accept lower yields than would typicaklydvailable on commercial real estate loans andi-fianhily real estate loans.

Investment securities decreased $793,000, to $ididn at December 31, 2005 from $76.8 millionCecember 31, 2004. The decrease in
investment securities was primarily attributabléhte sale of lower yielding investment securitieshie fourth quarter of 2005. This decrease
was offset by acquisitions of investment securittesollateralize municipal deposits. In comparisomestment securities increased $17.2
million, or 29%, from 2003 to 2004. The increasénvestment securities was primarily attributaldehte acquisition of investment securities
to collateralize municipal deposit accounts.

The following table sets forth the carrying valdd¢lee Company's investment portfolio at the dabeciated.

AT DECEMBER 31,

(In thousands) 2005 2004 2003

INVESTMENT SECURITIES:
US Treasury and agencies $20,713 $21,609 $6,354
State and political subdivisions 11,177 8,881 7,359
Corporate 5,936 5,919 6,421
Mortgage-backed 31,565 32,213 29,734
Equity securities and FHLB stock 2,626 2,800 2,932
Mutual funds 6,177 5,935 5,712

78,194 77,357 58,512

Unrealized (loss) gain on available for sale portfo li (2,150) (520) 1,095

S

Total investments in securities $ 76,044 $76,837 $59,607
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The following table sets forth the scheduled méesgj amortized cost, fair values and average yifddthe Company's investment securities
at December 31, 2005. Yield is calculated on theréimed cost to maturity and adjusted to a fully-émuivalent basis.

ONE YEAR OR LESS ONE TO FIVE YEARS FIVE TO TEN YEARS
A NNUALIZED ANNUALIZED ANNUALIZED
AMORTIZED WEIGHTED AMORTIZED WEIGHTED AMORTIZED WEIGHTED
(Dollars in thousands) COST AVG YIELD COST AVGYIELD COST AVG YIELD
DEBT INVESTMENT SECURITIES:
US Treasury and agencies $ 2,649 1.82% $10,966 3.31% $7,098 4.18%
State and political subdivisions 40 3.89% 2,763 3.04% 3,770 3.50%
Corporate 350 6.85% 2,450 4.50% 988 4.93%
Total $ 3,039 2.43% $16,179 3.44% $11,856 4.03%
EQUITY AND MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES:
Mutual funds $ 6,177 194% $ - - % - -
Mortgage-backed - - 3,915 3.87% 8,434 4.00%
Equity securities and FHLB stock 2,627 4.49% - - - -
Total 8,804 2.70% 3,915 3.87% $8,434 4.00%
Total investment securities $11,843 2.63% $20,094 3.53% $20,290 4.02%
MORE THAN TEN YEARS TOTAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES
ANNUALIZED ANNUALIZED
AMORTIZED WEIGHTED AMORTIZED FAIR WEIGHTED
(Dollars in thousands) COST AVG YIELD COST VALUE AVG YIELD
DEBT INVESTMENT SECURITIES:
US Treasury and agencies $ - - $20,713 $19,967 3.42%
State and political subdivisions 4,60 3.97% 11,177 10,980 3.58%
Corporate 2,148 5.31% 5,936 5,854 5.00%
Total $ 6,752 4.37% 37,826 $36,801 3.71%

EQUITY AND MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES:
Mutual funds - - 6,177 $5,895 1.94%
Mortgage-backed 19,216 4.52% 31,565 30,718 4.30%

Equity securities and FHLB stock - - 2,626 2,630 5.08%
Total 19,216 4.52% 40,368 39,243 3.99%
Total investment securities 25,968 4.49% 78,194 $76,044 3.86%
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LOANS RECEIVABLE

Loans receivable represent 71% of the Company'srepassets and account for the greatest portivotafinterest income. The Company
emphasizes residential real estate financing atidgates a continued commitment to financing thechase or improvement of residential
real estate in its market area. The Company alsmdz credit to businesses within its marketplacened by commercial real estate,
equipment, inventories and accounts receivable.dhticipated that small business lending in trenfof mortgages, term loans, leases, and
lines of credit will provide the most opportunigrfbalance sheet and revenue growth over the agar Commercial loans comprise 10% of
the total loan portfolio. At December 31, 2005, 88fthe Company's total loan portfolio consistedoains secured by real estate, of which
17% consisted of commercial real estate loans.

Decem ber 31,
(In thousands) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Residential real estate (1) $119,707 $123,898 $1 28,989 $123,178 $112,110
Commercial real estate 31,845 29,874 31,278 32,657 30,455
Commercial loans 18,334 16,834 15,090 13,196 14,358
Consumer loans 19,682 18,505 16,880 15,068 12,615
$189,568 $189,111 $1 92,237 $184,099 $169,538

(1) Includes loans held for sale.

The following table shows the amount of loans @utding as of December 31, 2005 which, based oninémgascheduled repayments of
principal, are due in the periods indicated. Demlaads having no stated schedule of repaymentsiarstiated maturity, and overdrafts are
reported as one year or less. Adjustable and figatite loans are included in the period on whitlrest rates are next scheduled to adjust
rather than the period in which they contractuaigture, and fixed rate loans are included in threoden which the final contractual
repayment is due.

Due Under Due 1-5 Due Over
(In thousands) One Year Years Five Years Total
Real estate:
Commercial real estate $8,691 $15,067 $8 ,087 $ 31,845
Construction 40 185 2 382 2,607
Residential real estate $39,319 48,640 29 ,141 117,100
$48,050 $63,892 $39 ,610 $151,552
Commercial 10,576 7,701 57 18,334
Consumer 10,148 4,900 4 ,634 19,682
Total loans $68,774 $76,493 $44 , 301 $189,568
Interest rates:
Fixed 18,024 49,993 37 ,279 105,296
Variable 50,750 26,500 7 ,022 84,272
Total Loans $68,774 $76,493 $44 ,301 $189,568

Total loans receivable remained relatively consistghen compared to the prior year. The commereill estate, commercial loan and
consumer loan portfolios increased $2.0 million5%1illion and $1.2 million, respectively. The ieases in these portfolios were partially
offset by a decrease in the residential real eftates of $4.2 million. By comparison, loans readile decreased $3.1 million, or 2%, in 2004
from 2003. The decrease of the loan portfolio fi2®03 to 2004 is primarily attributable to the des® in residential and commercial
mortgages as amortization, prepayments and satpaaad loan originations of $29.3 million duringd20 Decreases in the mortgage
portfolios when comparing 2004 to 2003, were phytiaffset by an increase in municipal loans andstaner loans. The growth in the
consumer loan portfolio is primarily home equitgtooriginations.
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Residential real estate loans decreased $4.2 mithio3%, during 2005. The residential real egtatgfolio consists of 58% in fixed-rate
mortgages and 42% in adjustable-rate mortgagesd@tease in the residential real estate portfslincipally due to a net decrease in 15-
year fixed rate mortgages of $5.1 million and al$gillion decrease in -year fixed rate loans held for sale, partiallysetfby an increase in
the adjustable rate mortgage portfolio. The inaéaghe adjustable rate mortgage portfolio pritgagsulted from an increase in customer
demand for the Company's hybrid adjustable ratagages ("ARM"s). Hybrid ARMs have rates that aredi for an initial period (principall
3,5, 7 or 10 years) and then convert to one-ydjaistable rate mortgages.

Commercial real estate loans increased $2.0 mjlbor7%, from the prior year as new loan produatseradded to the portfolio. Commercial
real estate loans decreased $1.4 million, or 4%nd2004.

Commercial loans, including loans to municipalitieereased 9% over the prior year to $18.3 milswmecember 31, 2005. The increase in
commercial loans resulted primarily from a $1.8limil net increase in small business loans. In cammpa, commercial loans, including
municipal loans, increased 12% during 2004 pringatile to the origination of municipal loans.

Consumer loans, which include second mortgage Jdame equity lines of credit, direct installmentlaevolving credit loans, increased 6%
to $19.7 million at December 31, 2005. The incraaselted from an increase in home equity linesreélit and second mortgage loans. The
Company has promoted its home equity products farinf) the customer loans with no closing costs @mpetitive market rates.
Management feels these loans are an attractivefifesads and will continue to promote home equitgducts in 2006. During 2004,
consumer loans increased $1.6 million, or 10%,lteguprimarily from an increase in home equity guats.

NONPERFORMING LOANS AND ASSETS
The following table represents information concegnihe aggregate amount of nonperforming assets:

DECEMBER 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Nonaccrual loans:

Commercial real estate and commercial
Consumer
Real estate - construction

Mortgage

Total nonaccrual loans
Loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing

Total non-performing loans
Foreclosed real estate

Total non-performing assets

Non-performing loans to total loans
Non-performing assets to total assets

Interest income received on nonaccrual loans

Interest income that would have been recorded
under the original terms of the loans

$ 757 $ 776 $1,677 $ 603 $ 488
89 122 172 166 56
- - 270 - -
834 953 873 942 1,576

$1,680 $1,851 $2,992 $1,711 $2,120

$1,680 $1,851 $2,992 $1,711 $2,120
743 798 202 1,396 632

$2,423 $2,649 $3,194 $3,107 $2,752

0.89% 0.98% 1.59% 0.95% 1.30%
0.82% 0.88% 1.15% 1.11% 1.13%

$ 34 $ 64 $ 75 %141 $ 118




The asset quality of the Company's loan portfolie Improved during 2005. Residential and consuremgliencies continue to decline by
14% during 2005 and 18% during 2004, resulting ftbminstitution of a more stringent collectionipgl Total nonperforming assets
(nonperforming loans and foreclosed real estatBlegember 31, 2005 were 0.81% of total assetsrapa@d to 0.88% of total assets at
December 31, 2004. Total nonperforming loans (dast90 days or more) decreased $196,000, or 1186gd2005 and decreased 38%
during 2004. Total delinquent loans (those 30 day®more delinquent) as a percentage of total leare 2.03% at December 31, 2005
compared to 1.93% at December 31, 2004. Approximnd&ds of the Company's nonperforming loans at Dawmer 31, 2005 are secured by
residential real estate with loss potential expttebe manageable within the allocated reserves.

The Company generally places a loan on nonacctaaissand ceases accruing interest when loan payregormance is deemed
unsatisfactory and the loan is past due 90 daysove. The Company considers a loan impaired whasedon current information and
events, it is probable that the Company will belbla#o collect the scheduled payments of princgral interest when due according to the
contractual terms of the loan.

The measurement of impaired loans is generallycbapen the present value of future cash flows dieted at the historical effective interest
rate, except that all collateral-dependent loaesvaasured for impairment based on fair value @ttilateral. The Company used the fair
value of collateral to measure impairment on conumaéand commercial real estate loans in 2005. é¢dnber 31, 2005, the Company had
$2.5 million in loans which were deemed to be imgaihaving a valuation allowance of $90,000. Ofithpaired loan balance, $2.3 million
represents one commercial credit relationshipwlee restructured during 2004. A $63,000 impairnmesérve is recorded on this relations
The customer has been making payments accorditing t@structured terms and its financial positias tmproved significantly.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The allowance for loan losses is a reserve eslaalithrough charges to expense in the form of eigiom for loan losses and reduced by loan
charge-offs net of recoveries. Allowance for loasskes represents the amount available for proloaddit losses in the Company's loan
portfolio as estimated by management. The Compaaigtains an allowance for loan losses based upoardghly evaluation of known and
inherent risks in the loan portfolio, which inclisde review of the balances and composition ofdhe portfolio as well as analyzing the level
of delinquencies in each segment of the loan partfdhe Company uses a general allocation metbothe residential real estate and the
consumer loan pools based upon a methodology eatloss factors applied to loan balances andctefietual loss experience, delinquency
trends and current economic conditions. The Compavigws individually, commercial real estate andheercial loans greater than
$150,000, that are not accruing interest and agkdrunder the Company's risk rating system, asalpaention, substandard, doubtful or loss
to determine if the loans are impaired. If loars determined to be impaired, the Company estalslialspecific reserve allocation. The
specific allocation is determined based on the mexs#nt valuation of the loan's collateral anddahstomer's ability to pay. For all other
commercial real estate and commercial loans, thregany uses the general allocation method that lesiab a reserve for each risk rating
category. The general allocation method for comiakreal estate and commercial loans considersdhee factors that are considered when
evaluating residential real estate and consumerpoals. The allowance for loan losses reflectsagament's best estimate of probable loan
losses at December 31, 2005.

The allowance for loans losses was $1.7 millioDetember 31, 2005, an 8% decrease from Decemb@084, The allowance for loans
losses as a percentage of total loans decrea€e8%% at December 31, 2005 from 0.98% in the pré@r. Net loan charge-offs were
$459,000 during 2005 compared to $626,000 in 208é.Company experienced a higher level of charfgehfring 2004 resulting from the
charge-off of portions of three commercial lendietationships.
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The following table sets forth the analysis of #flewance for loan losses at or for the periodsciaied.

2005 2004 2003 2002 2 001

% GROSS % GROSS % GROSS % GROSS % GROSS
Dollars in thousands) AMOUNT LOANS AM OUNT LOANS AMOUNT LOANS AMOUNT LOANS AMOU NT LOANS
Commercial real estate and loans $1,282 26.5% $ 1,483 24.7% $1,218 24.1% $1,042 24.9% $1,0 83 26.5%
Consumer loans 289 10.4% 270 98% 120 8.8% 136 8.2% 1 00 7.4%
Residential real estate 108 63.1% 74 65.5% 377 67.1% 303 66.9% 4 96 66.1%
Total $1,679 100.0% $ 1,827 100.0% $1,715 100.0% $1,481 100.0% $1,6 79 100.0%

The following table sets forth the allocation dbalance for loan losses by loan category for théopes indicated. The allocation of the
allowance by category is not necessarily indicatif/@uture losses and does not restrict the usbeofillowance to absorb losses in any
category.

(Dollars in thousands) 200 5 2004 2003 2002 2001
BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR $1, 827 $1,715 $1,481 $1,679 $1,274
Allowance acquired in branch purchase - - - 57 -

Provisions charged to operating expenses 311 738 598 1,375 708
RECOVERIES OF LOANS PREVIOUSLY CHARGED-OFF:

Commercial real estate and loans 25 41 3 26 53
Consumer 14 20 17 6 9
Residential real estate 10 - 17 - -

Total recoveries 49 61 37 32 62
LOANS CHARGED OFF:

Commercial real estate and loans ( 284) (439) (128) (1,285) (72)
Consumer ( 137) (126) (189) (291) (184)
Residential real estate (87) (122) (84) (86) (109)

Total charged-off ( 508) (687) (401) (1,662) (365)
Net charge-offs ( 459) (626) (364) (1,630) (303)
Balance at end of year $1, 679 $1,827 $1,715 $1,481 $1,679
Net charge-offs to average loans outstanding 0. 24% 0.33% 0.19% 0.92% 0.19%
Allowance for loan losses to year-end loans 0. 89% 0.98% 0.91% 0.82% 1.03%

DEPOSITS

The Company's deposit base is drawn from severséullice offices in its market area. The depossebeonsists of demand deposits, money
management accounts, savings and time deposits1d>2005, 61% of the Company's average deposit &eb239.9 million consisted of cc
deposits. Core deposits are considered to be rtetvesand provide the Company with a lower costamof funds. The Company will
continue to emphasize retail deposits by maintgiitnetwork of full service offices and provididgpositors with a full range of deposit
product offerings. Pathfinder Commercial Bank wélek business growth by focusing on its local ifieation and service excellence. The
Commercial Bank had an average balance of $311l®mih municipal deposits in 2005, primarily comteted in money market demand
accounts.

Average deposits increased $9.5 million, or 4%, wbempared to 2004. The increase in average dspwoditarily related to a $2.9 million
increase in the average balance of municipal deposimbined with an increase in retail deposit® féw branch in Central Square added
$3.1 million to the average balance of retail dépasnce its opening June of 2005. In compariseerage deposits from 2003 to 2004
increased $22.3 million, or 11%. Deposit growtl2@04 resulted from the growth both in retail andnianicipal deposits. The Commercial
Bank increased the number of municipal customegto
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in 2004 from 11 in 2003. The new municipal custosrecount balances represented $20.2 million o$30 million in municipal deposits
outstanding at December 31, 2004.

The Company's average deposit mix in 2005, as caeda 2004, reflected a slight shift from saviagsl club deposits to time deposits. The
Company's average demand deposits, interest anadtexast bearing, represented 16% of total avedapesits, which was comparable with
2004. The Company's money management accountsesypeel 17% of total deposits, down 1 percentaga fai the same period in 2004.
The Company promotes its money management accyuftdring competitive rates to retain existing aittact new customers.

The average amount of deposits, average rate pdigercentage of deposits are summarized belotiéoyears indicated.

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2005 2004 2003
AVG PERCEN T AVG PERCENT AVG PERCEN T
AVG RATE OF AVG RATE OF AVG RATE OF
(Dollars in thousands)  BALANCE PAID DEPOSIT S BALANCE PAID DEPOSITS BALANCE PAID DEPOSI TS
Noninterest bearing
demand accounts $19,324 - 8.06% $17974 - 7.80% $16,345 - 7.86 %
NOW accounts 19,877 0.54% 8.29% 20,808 0.65% 9.03% 17,663 0.79% 8.49 %
Money management accounts 41,380 2.02% 17.25% 40,775 1.39% 17.70% 21,788 1.14% 10.47 %
Savings and club accounts 65,558 0.44% 27.33% 68,046 0.67% 29.54% 66,481 0.77% 31.96 %
Time deposits 93,732 3.29% 39.07% 82,769 3.00% 35.93% 85,751 3.33% 41.22 %
Total average deposits ~ $239,871 1.96% 100.00% $230,372 1.71% 100.00% $208,028 1.96% 100.00 %

At December 31, 2005, time deposits in excess 00FID0 totaled $24.0 million, or 26%, of time demoand 10% of total deposits. At
December 31, 2004, these deposits totaled $18ldmibr 22% of time deposits and 8% of total désos

The following table indicates the amount of the Bamertificates of deposit of $100,000 or moreetiramaining until maturity as of
December 31, 2005:

CERTIFICATES OF
DEPOSIT OF
In thousands) $100,000 OR MORE

REMAINING MATURITY:

Three Months or less $ 6,868
Three through Six months 2,765
Six through twelve months 3,886
Over twelve months 10,515

Total $24,034
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BORROWINGS

Short-term borrowings are comprised primarily ofaces and overnight borrowing at the FHLBNY. Theeze $2.0 million in short-term
borrowings outstanding at December 31, 2005 as aosapto $1.0 million in 2004.

Information regarding short-term borrowings dur2@p5, 2004 and 2003 is as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) 2005 2004 2003
Maximum outstanding at any month end $15,00 0 $3,100 $12,000
Average amount outstanding during the year 5,69 2 1,400 2,660
Average interest rate during the year 35 7% 131% 1.17%

Long-term borrowed funds consist of advances apdrohase agreements from the FHLBNY and junior adibated debentures. Long-term
borrowed funds totaled $34.5 million at DecemberZI05 as compared to $39.5 million at DecembefB04.

CAPITAL

Shareholders' equity decreased $898,000 to $20liemat December 31, 2005. The Company added $062t0 retained earnings through
net income, which was more than offset by cashdéivils returned to its shareholders of $686,000e@bmprehensive loss increased
$978,000 to $1.3 million at December 31, 2005. Addal paid in capital increased $268,000 due éoetkercise of stock options and the
allocation of employee stock ownership plan shares.

The Company's mutual holding company parent, RatbfiBancorp, M.H.C., waived its right to receikie tlividend for the quarters ended
June 30, 2005 and December 31, 2005.

Risk-based capital provides the basis for which all szarle evaluated in terms of capital adequacy. Glaguiequacy is evaluated primarily
the use of ratios which measure capital againat &ssets, as well as against total assets thateaghted based on defined risk characteris
The Company's goal is to maintain a strong capialtion, consistent with the risk profile of itshsidiary banks that supports growth and
expansion activities while at the same time exaegpdigulatory standards. At December 31, 2005 findttr Bank exceeded all regulatory
required minimum capital ratios and met the reguiatiefinition of a "well-capitalized" institution.e. a leverage capital ratio exceeding 5%,
a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio exceeding 6% atmtal risk-based capital ratio exceeding 10%.$&te 17 in the accompanying financial
statements for the Company's and the Bank's ratios.

LIQUIDITY

Liquidity management involves the Company's abilityyenerate cash or otherwise obtain funds abnedide rates to support asset growth,
meet deposit withdrawals, maintain reserve requérgs) and otherwise operate the Company on an og@aisis. The Company's primary
sources of funds are deposits, borrowed funds, @maton and prepayment of loans and maturitieigeéstment securities and other short-
term investments, and earnings and funds provided bperations. While scheduled principal repaymentloans are a relatively predicta
source of funds, deposit flows and loan prepaymarggreatly influenced by general interest ratesnomic conditions and competition. 1
Company manages the pricing of deposits to maitalasired deposit balance. In addition, the Comparests excess funds in short-term
interest-earning and other assets, which proviglédity to meet lending requirements.

The Company's liquidity has been enhanced by itslbeeship in the FHLBNY, whose competitive advanmgpams and lines of credit
provide the Company with a
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safe, reliable and convenient source of funds.ghifitant decrease in deposits in the future coeddilt in the Company having to seek other
sources of funds for liquidity purposes. Such sesimould include, but are not limited to, additidmarrowings, trust preferred security
offerings, brokered deposits, negotiated time digpdbe sale of "available-for-sale" investmerdiséies, the sale of securitized loans, or the
sale of whole loans. Such actions could resuligihdr interest expense costs and/or losses orata@Esecurities or loans.

The Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO}tloé Company is responsible for implementing thécped and guidelines for the
maintenance of prudent levels of liquidity. As céd@mber 31, 2005, the Company is in compliance igtpolicy guidelines with regard to
liquidity.

AGGREGATE CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following table represents the Company's onadfilalance sheet aggregate contractual obligatiormake future payments as of
December 31, 2005:

OVER 1 OVER 3

1YEAR TO TO OVERS
(In thousands) OR LESS 3 YEARS 5 YEARS YEARS TOTAL
Time deposits $51,724 $30,173 $ 7,690 $6,568 $ 96,155
Junior subordinated debentures - - - 5,155 5,155
Borrowings 5,000 17,960 8,400 - 31,360
Operating leases a7 98 102 115 362
Payments under benefit plans 305 697 752 9,181 10,935
Total $ 57,075 $48,928 $ 16,944 $21,020 $143,967

In addition, the Company, in the conduct of ordjnlamsiness operations, routinely enters into catdréor services. These contracts may
require payment for services to be provided inftitere and may also contain penalty clauses foetrly termination of the contract.
Management is not aware of any additional commitsiencontingent liabilities, which may have a miaeadverse impact on the liquidity
capital resources of the Company.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company is also party to financial instrumenith off-balance sheet risk in the normal coursbudiness to meet the financing needs of
its customers. These financial instruments inclem@mitments to extend credit and standby lettergedit. At December 31, 2005, the
Company had $19.5 million in outstanding commitreentextend credit and standby letters of credie Note 15 in the accompanying
financial statements.
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ITEM 7A: QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

The Company's risk of loss arising from adversengka in the fair value of financial instrumentspmarket risk, is composed primarily of
interest rate risk. The management of interestgasitivity seeks to avoid fluctuating net intémagargins and to provide consistent net
interest income through periods of changing inter@®s. The Company has an Asset-Liability Manag@n@ommittee (ALCO) which is
responsible for establishing policies to limit egpee to interest rate risk, and to ensure procedane established to monitor compliance with
those policies. Those procedures include reviewliergCompany's asset and liability policies, setfiriges and terms on rate-sensitive
products, and monitoring and measuring the impfirtterest rate changes on the Company's earnimfjsapital. The Company's Board of
Directors reviews the guidelines established byAh€O.

Since December of 2004, the Federal Reserve hesaised short-term target rates 8 times, 25 basisspeach time to 4.50% from 2.50%.
During this time frame longer-term interest ratagédiremained relatively unchanged resulting iratighing and inversion of the yield curve.
The short-term interest rate increases have caxm#thued net interest margin compression as ghort-deposits and borrowings on the
Company's liability sensitive balance sheet reprite the current rate environment while securityghases and loan originations and
refinances were being done at the stable longer-tates. During the past 24-month period of rishgrtterm interest rates, the Company
continued to practice conservative balance sheeagament strategies by attempting to extend thantias of its rate sensitive liabilities a
shorten the maturity or repricing term of its ragmsitive assets. This conservative balance shesdgement strategy has resulted in
additional margin pressure and reduction in netrégt income during the prior two years. Managerbeli¢ves this balance sheet strategy
best positions the Company and lessens its risksigfaiture interest rate fluctuations.

The primary objective of the Company's asset/lighihanagement process is to maximize earninggetudn on capital within acceptable
levels of risk. The Company does not believe fiassible to reliably predict future interest ratevements, and it seeks to maintain an
appropriate process and set of measurement tadletiable it to identify and quantify sources eéiest rate risk ("IRR") in varying rate
environments. The primary tools used by the Compamyanaging rate risk are income simulation arntdoeetfolio value modeling
techniques.

Interest rate risk can result from timing differeadn the maturity/repricing of an institution'sess, liabilities and off balance sheet contracts;
the effect of embedded options, such as loan prepats, interest rate caps/floors, and deposit watlels; and the difference in the behavior
of the various lending and funding rates, sometireésrred to as basis risk.

Given the potential types and differing relatedrabteristics of IRR, it is important that the companaintain an appropriate process and set
of measurement tools that enable it to identify qudntify its primary sources of IRR. The Compalspaecognizes that effective
management of IRR includes an understanding of vaaéential adverse changes in interest rates lwil through its income statements.
Accordingly, the Company not only looks at a 12 thdmorizon when managing its exposure to IRR,sbalonsiders a longer-term strategic
horizon.

It is the Company's objective to manage its exposuinterest rate risk, understanding that ihithie business of taking on rate risk and the
elimination of such risk is not possible. It is@alsnderstood that as exposure to interest ratégisdduced, it may also result in net interest
margin being reduced.

Management believes the modeling and analysistahterest income (Earnings at Risk) and net pbtdafealue (Value at Risk) in different
interest rate environments provides the most mgéuimeasure of interest rate risk. Net interesbime simulation analysis captures both the
potential of all assets and liabilities to matureeprice and the probability that they will do $tet interest income simulation also attends to
the relative interest rate sensitivities of theems, and projects their behavior over an extepeeidd of time. Finally, net interest income
simulation permits management to assess the pmledfieicts on the balance sheet not only of chaingeserest rates, but also of proposed
strategies for responding to them. Net portfolitueaepresents the fair value of net assets (détedras the market value of
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assets minus the market value of liabilities usirdiscounted cash flow technique).

The following table measures the Company's intaegstrisk exposure in terms of the percentageghanits net interest income and net
portfolio value as a result of hypothetical chaniges00 basis point increments in market interatts. The table quantifies the changes in net
interest income and net portfolio value to paradlgfts in the yield curve. The column "Percent&d@nge in Net Interest Income" measures
the change to the next twelve month's projectedmetest income, due to parallel shifts in thdd/imurve. The column "Percentage Chang
Net Portfolio Value" measures changes in the ctifeenvalue of assets and liabilities to paratikifts in the yield curve. The column "NF
Capital Ratio" measures the ratio of the fair valfieet assets to the fair value of total assetseabase case and in 100 basis point
incremental interest rate shocks. The Company th&se percentage changes as a means to meastestirate risk exposure and quantifies

those changes against guidelines set by the Bddb@taxtors as part of the Company's Interest Rask policy. The Company's current
interest rate risk exposure is within those guitediset forth.

PERCENTAGE PERCENTAGE
CHANGE IN NPV CHANGE IN  CHANGE IN
INTEREST CAPITAL NET INTEREST NET PORTFOLIO
RATES RATIO INCOME VALUE

300 8.77% -12.75% -27.56%
200 9.63% -8.36% -18.54%
100 10.48% -4.10% -9.21%
0 11.26% --- -

-100 11.55% 1.18% 4.91%
-200 11.20% -3.26% 3.60%
-300 10.60% -8.72% -0.30%
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An interest rate sensitive asset or liability i®ahat, within a defined time period, either masube experiences an interest rate change in line
with general market interest rates. Historicallye most common method of estimating interest iakewas to measure the maturity and
repricing relationships between interest-earnirggssand interest-bearing liabilities at a spe@éimt in time ("GAP"), typically one year.
Under this method, a company is considered lighéiitnsitive when the amount of its interest-bealigtgjlities exceeds the amount of its
interest-earning assets within the one-year horietmwever, assets and liabilities with similar lieprg characteristics may not reprice at the
same time or to the same degree. As a result, dhgp@ny's GAP does not necessarily predict the itngfathanges in general levels of
interest rates on net interest income.

The following table shows the GAP position for thempany as of December 31, 2005.

MORE

WITHIN 3TO12 1TO3 3TO5 5 TO10 THAN
(Dollars in thousands) 3 MONTHS MONTHS YEARS YEARS YEARS 10 YEARS
INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS:
Interest earning deposits $ 586 $ -8 - -8 -$ -
Investment securities and FHLB stock 12,744 6,675 18,017 15,071 17,732 5,805
Loans receivable 33,355 35,348 46,886 29,098 34,821 10,060
Total interest-earning assets $ 46,685 $42,023 $64,903 $44,169 $ 52,553 $ 15,865
INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES:
Transaction deposit accounts (1) $ 9,450 $28,347 $19471 $ - $ -3 -
Savings deposits (1) 274 6,075 13,513 10,097 14,926 15,284
Certificates of deposit 19,333 32,130 30,265 7,858 6,550 19
Borrowings 2,000 3,000 17,960 8,400 - -
Junior subordinated debentures 5,155 - - - - -
Total interest-bearing liabilities $ 36,212 $69,552 $81,209 $26,355 $ 21,476 $ 15,303
Interest-earning assets less interest-
bearing liabilities ("interest rate sensitivity gap ") $ 10,473 $(27,529) $(16,306) $17,814 $ 31,077 $ 562
Cumulative excess (deficiency) of interest-
sensitive assets over interest-sensitive liabilitie s $ 10,473 $(17,056) $(33,362) $(15,548) $ 15,529 $ 16,091
Interest sensitivity gap to total assets 3.53% -9.27% -5.49%  6.00% 10.47% 0.19%
Cumulative interest sensitivity gap to total assets 3.53% -5.74% -11.23% -5.24% 5.23% 5.42%
Ratio of interest-earning assets to interest-
bearing liabilities 128.92% 60.42% 79.92% 167.59% 244.71% 103.67%
Cumulative ratio of interest-earning assets to
interest-bearing liabilities 128.92% 83.87% 82.16% 92.71% 106.61% 106.43%

(Dollars in thousands) TOTAL

INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS:

Interest earning deposits $ 586
Investment securities and FHLB stock 76,044
Loans receivable 189,568
Total interest-earning assets $266,198

INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES:

Transaction deposit accounts (1) $ 57,268
Savings deposits (1) 60,169
Certificates of deposit 96,155
Borrowings 31,360
Junior subordinated debentures 5,155
Total interest-bearing liabilities $250,107

Interest-earning assets less interest-
bearing liabilities (“interest rate sensitivity gap ")

Cumulative excess (deficiency) of interest-
sensitive assets over interest-sensitive liabilitie s

Interest sensitivity gap to total assets

Cumulative interest sensitivity gap to total assets

Ratio of interest-earning assets to interest-
bearing liabilities

Cumulative ratio of interest-earning assets to
interest-bearing liabilities

(1) The following assumptions have been used whatyaing no-maturity deposits for GAP Table purposes: 14% woirggs deposits ar



assumed to reprice or mature within one year, 228tinl to 3 years, 16% within 3 to 5 years, an@24ithin each of the remaining time
periods. Transaction deposits - 66% of the NOW antbalances are assumed to reprice or maturenwotie year, and the remaining 34% is
assumed to reprice or mature within the 1 to 3 yiea frame. 100% of the money management accauratassumed to reprice within the

first three months
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
[GRAPHIC OMITED]

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders Patkfil&ncorp, Inc.
Oswego, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednstatits of condition of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. andisidiaries as of December 31, 2005
and 2004, and the related consolidated stateméirisame, changes in shareholders' equity and taais for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2005. These consolifiatattial statements are the responsibility of@mampany's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesgsotidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheotisolidated financial statements are
of material misstatement. The Company is not reguio have, nor were we engaged to perform, arn afids internal control over financial
reporting. Our audits included consideration oéinal control over financial reporting as a basisdesigning audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for tingpse of expressing an opinion on the effectiveiéshe Company's internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express nolsopinion. An audit also includes examining, omst basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated fighstaitements, assessing the accounting prinaigled and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall &iizhistatement presentation. We believe that oditaprovide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegrferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of Pathfir
Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December @15 2nd 2004, and the results of their operatiouistiaeir cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2005, ifoocmity with accounting principles generally acasgin the United States of Americ

/sl  BEARD M LLER COWANY LLP
Beard M1l er Conmpany LLP

Harri sburg, Pennsyl vania
February 3, 2006
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CONDITION

(In thousands, except share data)

ASSETS:
Cash and due from banks

DECEMBER 31,

2005

2004

$ 7,309 $ 6,7

Interest earning deposits 586 7,5
Total cash and cash equivalents 7,895 14,3
Investment securities, at fair value 74,239 75,0
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost 1,805 1,7
Mortgage loans held-for-sale 0 21
Loans 189,568 186,9
Less: Allowance for loan losses 1,679 1,8
Loans receivable, net 187,889 185,1
Premises and equipment, net 8,020 75
Accrued interest receivable 1,678 15
Foreclosed real estate 743 7
Goodwill 3,840 38
Intangible asset, net 404 6
Bank owned life insurance 5987 57
Other assets 4,448 3,4
Total assets $ 296,948 $302,0
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Deposits:
Interest-bearing $ 216,136 $217,5
Noninterest-bearing 20,241 191
Total deposits 236,377 236,6
Short-term borrowings 2,000 1,0
Long-term borrowings 29,360 34,3
Junior subordinated debentures 5155 5.1
Other liabilities 3,128 3,0
Total liabilities 276,020 280,2
Shareholders' equity:
Preferred stock, authorized shares 1,000,000; no sh ares issued or outstanding
Common stock, par value $.01; authorized 10,000,000 shares;
2,950,419 and 2,937,419 shares issued; and 2,463,13 2 and
2,450,132 shares outstanding, respectively. 29
Additional paid-in-capital 7,721 7.4
Retained earnings 20,965 21,1
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,285) (3
Unearned ESOP shares - (
Treasury Stock, at cost; 487,287 shares (6,502) (6,5
Total shareholders' equity 20,928 21,8

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

$ 296,948 $302,0

The accompanying notes are an integral part o€dimsolidated financial statements.

Page 3¢



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(In thousands, except per share data) 2005 2004 2003
INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME:
Loans, including fees $ 11,794 $11,815 $12,833
Debt securities:
Taxable 2,481 2,075 2,034
Tax-exempt 505 362 226
Dividends 247 145 159
Other 71 81 33
Total interest income 15,098 14,478 15,285
INTEREST EXPENSE:
Interest on deposits 4,319 3,639 3,751
Interest on short-term borrowings 204 17 31
Interest on long-term borrowings 1,833 1,917 2,166
Total interest expense 6,356 5,573 5,948
Net interest income 8,742 8,905 9,337
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES 311 738 598
Net interest income after provision for | oan losses 8,431 8,167 8,739

NONINTEREST INCOME:

Service charges on deposit accounts 1,318 967 818
Increase in value of bank owned life insurance 218 175 171
Loan servicing fees 215 256 282
Net (losses) gains on sales and impairment of inv estment securities  (205) 772 542
Net (losses) gains on sales of loans and foreclos ed real estate (88) 279 326
Other charges, commissions & fees 582 598 469
Total other income 2,040 3,047 2,608
NONINTEREST EXPENSE:
Salaries and employee benefits 5,123 4,798 4,455
Building occupancy 1,178 1,169 1,159
Data processing expenses 1,226 981 868
Professional and other services 818 682 770
Amortization of intangible asset 223 223 223
Other expenses 2,492 1,454 1,619
Total other expenses 10,060 9,307 9,094
Income before income taxes 411 1,907 2,253
(Benefit)/Provision for income taxes (51) 502 601
Net income 462 $ 1,405 $ 1,652
Net income per share - basic $ 0.19 $ 0.58 $ 0.68
Net income per share - diluted $ 0.19 $ 057 $ 0.67
Dividends per share $ 041 $0.405 $ 0.40

The accompanying notes are an integral part o€disolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

COMMON STO
(In thousands, except per share data) SHARES

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2002 2,914,669

Comprehensive income:

Net income

Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Unrealized net gains on securities
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

ESOP shares earned

Stock option exercised 4,717
Treasury stock purchased

Dividends declared ($.40 per share)

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2003

Comprehensive income:

Net income

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Unrealized net losses on securities
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

ESOP shares earned

Stock option exercised

Dividends declared ($.405 per share)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2004

Comprehensive loss:

Net income

Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Unrealized net gains on securities
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS:

ESOP shares earned

Stock option exercised

Dividends declared ($.41 per share)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2005

TREASURY
(In thousands, except per share data) STOCK

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2002 $(3,815)

Comprehensive income:

Net income

Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Unrealized net gains on securities
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

ESOP shares earned
Stock option exercised

Treasury stock purchased (2,687)
Dividends declared ($.40 per share)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2003 $(6,502)

Comprehensive income:

Net income

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Unrealized net losses on securities
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

ESOP shares earned

Stock option exercised

Dividends declared ($.405 per share)

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2004 $(6,502)

Comprehensive loss:

Net income

Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Unrealized net gains on securities
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS:

ESOP shares earned
Stock option exercised
Dividends declared ($.41 per share)

ACCUMULATED

ADDITIONAL OTHER
CKISSUED PAID-IN RETAINED COMPREHENSIVE
AMOUNT CAPITAL EARNINGS INCOME (LOSS)

$ 298 7114 % 19,448 $

1,652

76

(651)

2919386 $ 29$% 7225 % 20,449

1,405

88
18,033 - 140
(668)
29374198 29$ 7453 $ 21,186

462

55
13,000 - 213
(683)
2,950,419 $ 29$ 7,721 $ 20,965

(668)

UNEARNED

579 $ (124)

83

46

(969)

45
$  (307) $ (33)

(978)

33

$ (1,285) $ -



BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2005 $(6,502) $20,928

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢imsolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended Dec ember 31,
(In thousands) 2005 2004 2003
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Income $ 462 $ 1,405 $ 1,652
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash pr ovided by (used in) operating

activities:

Provision for loan losses 311 738 598
ESOP shares earned 88 133 122
Deferred income tax expense 107 502 307
Proceeds from sale of loans 8,795 12,440 23,380
Originations of loans held-for-sale - (10,884) (23,049)
Realized losses (gains) on sales of:
Foreclosed real estate 23 (84) (91)
Loans 65 (195) (235)
Available-for-sale investment securities 205 (772) (542)
Depreciation 697 590 542
Amortization of intangible asset 223 223 223
Amortization of deferred financing costs 30 30 30
Amortization of mortgage servicing rights 123 158 122
Increase in value of bank owned life insurance (218) (175) (171)
Net amortization of premiums and discounts on inve stment securities 364 358 288
(Increase) decrease in interest receivable (173) (231) 61
Net change in other assets and liabilities (480) (1,855) 159
Net cash provided by operating activities 10,622 2,381 3,396
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investment securities available-for-sa le and
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock (23,361) (35,610) (25,780)
Proceeds from maturities and principal reductions of
investment securities available-for-sale 15,361 9,897 19,898
Proceeds from sale:
Available-for-sale investment securities 6,593 7,282 9,175
Real estate acquired through foreclosure 770 382 1,890
Purchase of bank owned life insurance - (1,100) -
Net (increase) decrease in loans (10,514) 245 (9,203)
Purchase of premises and equipment (1,137) (1,520) (1,571)
Net cash used in investing activities (12,288) (20,424) (5,591)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net (decrease) increase in demand deposits, NOW ac counts, savings accounts,
money management deposit accounts and escrow deposi ts (12,067) 28,441 5,429
Net increase (decrease) in time deposits 11,772 1,337 (3,057)
Net proceeds from (repayments on) short-term borro wings 1,000 (1,100) 1,400
Payments on long-term borrowings (10,000) (4,500) (9,000)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 5,000 - 5,700
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 213 140 35
Cash dividends (682) (664) (651)
Treasury stock purchased - - (2,687)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activitie S (4,764) 23,654 (2,831)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (6,430) 5,611 (5,026)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 14,325 8,714 13,740
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 7,895 $14,325 $ 8,714
CASH PAID DURING THE PERIOD FOR:
Interest $ 6,338 $ 5,639 $ 5,991
Income taxes paid 95 312 250
NON-CASH INVESTING ACTIVITY:
Transfer of loans to foreclosed real estate 738 894 605
Transfer of loans to loans held-for-sale 6,701 - -

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftinsolidated financial statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The accompanying 2005 and 2004 consolidated fiahstatements include the accounts of Pathfindec8ap, Inc. (the "Company") and its
wholly owned subsidiary, Pathfinder Bank (the "BgnKhe 2003 consolidated financial statements mistude the Company's other
subsidiary, Pathfinder Statutory Trust | (the "T*usThe Trust was formed in 2002 for the purpobessuing mandatorily redeemable
convertible securities, which are considered Tiepital under regulatory capital adequacy requérs The Trust was deconsolidated upon
adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Boatdrpretation No. 46, "Consolidation of Variabledrgst Entities," and Interpretation of
ARB No 51 (FIN 46), which was revised in Decemb@®2 (See Note 10). The Bank has three wholly ovopatating subsidiaries,
Pathfinder Commercial Bank, Whispering Oaks Dewvelept Inc. and Pathfinder REIT, Inc. All inter-conmgaaccounts and activity have
been eliminated in consolidation. The Company leasis full service offices located in Oswego Couiitye Company is primarily engaged
in the business of attracting deposits from theegarpublic in the Company's market area, and tingsuch deposits, together with other
sources of funds, in loans secured by one-to-famnilf residential real estate, commercial realtestausiness assets and investment
securities.

Pathfinder Bancorp, M.H.C., (the "Holding Compang'iutual holding company whose activity is notuded in the accompanying
financial statements, owns approximately 64.3%hefdutstanding common stock of the Company. Salagimployee benefits and rent
approximating $135,000, $130,000 and $124,000, wkoeated from the Company to Pathfinder Banchtg].C. during 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively.

USE OF ESTIMATES IN THE PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL ST ATEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally acceptethi@a United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiztttae reported amounts of assets and lialsliied disclosure of contingent assets
liabilities at the date of the financial statemestsl the reported amounts of revenues and expdnseg the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Management tastified the allowance for loan losses and thduatin of securities for other than
temporary impairment to be the accounting areasrfiupiire the most subjective and complex judgmeartd as such, could be the most
subject to revision as new information becomeslabks.

The Company is subject to the regulations of varigovernmental agencies. The Company also undepgoeslic examinations by the
regulatory agencies which may subject it to furttieainges with respect to asset valuations, amafimésjuired loss allowances, and opere
restrictions resulting from the regulators' judgmsdmsed on information available to them at time tof their examinations.

SIGNIFICANT GROUP CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Most of the Company's activities are with customecsited primarily in Oswego and parts of Onondaganties of New York State. Note 3
discusses the types of securities that the Comjpaegts in. Note 4 discusses the types of lendiagthe Company engages in. The Comj
does not have any significant concentrations toargyindustry or customer.
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ADVERTISING

The Company follows the policy of charging the sasftadvertising to expense as incurred. Adveudisiosts included in other operating
expenses were $249,000, $224,000 and $245,0006dqmreiar ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 20Qatasely.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handjrasdue from banks and interest-bearing depasith priginal maturity of three months
or less).

INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The Company classifies investment securities adad@-for-sale. Available-for-sale securities aeported at fair value, with net unrealized
gains and losses reflected as a separate compaingmareholders' equity, net of the applicable inedax effect. None of the Company's
investment securities have been classified asngaati held-to-maturity securities.

Gains or losses on investment security transactiond®ased on the amortized cost of the specifierges sold. Premiums and discounts on
securities are amortized and accreted into incaosirgyithe interest method over the period to fiedk @r maturity.

The Company monitors investment securities for immpant on a quarterly basis. Declines in the failue of investment securities below cost
that are deemed to be other-than-temporary arectefl in earnings as realized losses. In estimatimgy-than-temporary impairment losses,
management considers (1) the length of time an@xtent to which the fair value has been less tua,

(2) the financial condition and near-term prospetthe issuer, and (3) the intent and abilityref Company to retain its investment in the
issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow fany anticipated recovery in fair value.

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK STOCK

Federal law requires a member institution of thédfal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") system to hold ste¢kts district FHLB according to a
predetermined formula. The stock is carried at.cost

MORTGAGE LOANS HELD-FOR-SALE

Mortgage loans held-for-sale are carried at theetosf cost or fair value. Fair value is determimethe aggregate. As of December 31, 2005,
there were no forward commitments outstanding. fABexember 31, 2004, the Company had approxim&®l900,000 of mortgage loan
forward commitments outstanding to hedge intergst risk on certain committed and originated lodie differences between the settlen
value of the forward commitments and the fair valfithese commitments were not significant at Dewen31, 2004.

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Transfers of financial assets, including saleahk and loan participations, are accounted feaks, when control over the assets has been
surrendered. Control over transferred assets isidé¢o be surrendered when (1) the assets havddmated from the Company, (2) the
transferee obtains the right (free of conditiors ttonstrain it from taking advantage of that rjgbtpledge or exchange the transferred assets
and (3) the Company does not maintain effectivdrobover the transferred assets through an agneetoeepurchase them before their
maturity.
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LOANS

The Company grants mortgage, commercial and consloues to customers. Loans that management hastdére and ability to hold for the
foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-offngeally are stated at unpaid principal balances, fkee allowance for loan losses and net
deferred loan origination fees and costs. Thetghifithe Company's debtors to honor their contréstiependent upon the real estate and
general economic conditions in the market arearést income is generally recognized when inconeatined using the interest method.
Nonrefundable loan fees received and related dimggination costs incurred are deferred and amedtiover the life of the loan using 1
interest method, resulting in a constant effecyiedd over the loan term. Deferred fees are recphinto income and deferred costs are
charged to income immediately upon prepaymentefdhated loan.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The allowance for loan losses is established asfoare estimated to have occurred through a provisr loan losses charged to earnings.
Loan losses are charged against the allowance mlaeagement believes the uncollectibility of a lbalance is confirmed. Subsequent
recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowaride Company periodically evaluates the adequadyenéllowance for loan losses in order to
maintain the allowance at a level that is suffitienabsorb probable credit losses. Managemerdlsiaion of the adequacy of the allowance
is based on a review of the Company's historicgd Experience, known and inherent risks in the pmatfolio and an analysis of the levels
and trends of delinquencies and charge-offs. TWaduation is inherently subjective as it requireireates that are susceptible to significant
revision as more information becomes available.

The allowance consists of specific and generaliaradlocated components. The specific componenta®ta loans that are classified as
impaired. For impaired loans, an allowance is disfaéd when the discounted cash flows (or collatesthue or observable market price) of
impaired loan is lower than the carrying valuel@ttloan. The general component covers non-claddifians and is based on historical loss
experience adjusted for qualitative factors. Anlimcated component is maintained to cover uncei&sthat could affect management's
estimate of probable losses. The unallocated coemgasf the allowance reflects the margin of imps&ai inherent in the underlying
assumptions used in the methodologies for estimatecific and general losses in the portfolio.

A loan is considered impaired, based on currearinftion and events, if it is probable the Compaillybe unable to collect the scheduled
payments of principal or interest when due accardinthe contractual terms of the loan agreememt. fieasurement of impaired loans is
generally based upon the present value of futush flaws discounted at the historical effectiveeratxcept that all collateral-dependent loans
are measured for impairment based on fair valueskdteral.

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous laansodlectively evaluated for impairment. Accordinghe Company does not separately
identify individual consumer and residential lodoisimpairment disclosures, unless such loanshaetibject of a restructuring agreement.

INCOME RECOGNITION ON IMPAIRED AND NON-ACCRUAL LOAN S

Loans, including impaired loans, are generallysifad as non-accrual if they are past due as tiwirity or payment of principal or interest
for a period of more than 90 days. When a loataissified as nomccrual and the future collectibility of the receddoan balance is doubtfi
collections of interest and principal are generafiplied as a reduction to principal outstanding.
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When future collectibility of the recorded loan date is expected, interest income may be recogoizedcash basis. In the case where a nor
accrual loan had been partially charged off, redt@@mof interest on a cash basis is limited ta tlihich would have been recognized on the
recorded loan balance at the contractual inteatst €ash interest receipts in excess of that atravarrecorded as recoveries to the allowance
for loan losses until prior charge-offs have badlyfrecovered.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET CREDIT RELATED FINANCIAL INSTRUME NTS

In the ordinary course of business, the Companyehtered into commitments to extend credit, inalgdiommitments under standby letters
of credit. Such financial instruments are recorddaén they are funded.

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, lesmatated depreciation. Depreciation is computed straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets, ranging uptgedrs for premises and 10 years for equipmenintelaance and repairs are charged to
operating expenses as incurred. The asset cosicandhulated depreciation are removed from the atsdar assets sold or retired and any
resulting gain or loss is included in the deterrtiaraof income.

FORECLOSED REAL ESTATE

Properties acquired through foreclosure, or by dediéu of foreclosure, are carried at their featue less estimated disposal costs. Write
downs of, and expenses related to, foreclosedestate holdings included in noninterest expense %£55,000, $85,000 and $124,000 in
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets represent core deposit intargydie goodwill arising from acquisitions. Core dapmtangibles represent the premium the
Company has paid for deposits acquired in excetfseofost incurred had the funds been purchastitwtinapital markets. Core deposit
intangibles are amortized on a straight-line basex a period of five years. Goodwill representséiicess cost of an acquisition over the fair
value of the net assets acquired. Goodwill is modrized but is evaluated annually for impairment.

MORTGAGE SERVICING RIGHTS

Originated mortgage servicing rights are recordetiar fair value at the time of transfer and ameortized in proportion to and over the
period of estimated net servicing income or lo$ge Tarrying value of the originated mortgage sémgicights is periodically evaluated for
impairment.
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STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company accounts for stock awards issued ¢éatdirs, officers and key employees using the isicimalue method in accordance with
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25. Thistheal requires that compensation expense be reajiizthe extent that the fair value
the stock exceeds the exercise price of the stwekdaat the grant date. The Company generally doesecognize compensation expense
related to stock awards because the stock awaragsaly have fixed terms and exercise prices thaegual to or greater than the fair value
of the Company's common stock at the grant date.

There is no pro forma expense reported for 2008a@k options were fully vested during 2003. Prarfa amounts of net income and earn
per share under Statement of Financial Accountiagdards No. 123 are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) 2003
NET INCOME:
As reported $ 1,652
Total stock-based compensation cost, net of tax, th at would

have been included in the determination of net in come if the

fair value based method had been applied to all a wards 28
Pro forma $ 1,624
EARNINGS PER SHARE: BASIC DILUTED
As reported $0.68 $ 0.67
Pro forma $0.67 $ 0.66

The fair value of these options was estimatedeatitite of grant in July 2001 using the Black-Scholgtions pricing model with the
following assumptions:

risk free interest rate - 5.0%; dividend yield 0%; market price volatility - 52.4%. An assumed gieed average option life of 6 years has
been utilized. For purposes of pro forma disclosutiee estimated fair value of the options is ainedtto expense over the options' vesting
period. No options were granted during 2005, 201 2003.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Company has established tax qualified retirérmpkams covering substantially all full-time empé®s and certain part-time employees.
Pension expense under these plans is chargedrimtoperations and consists of several comporémtst pension cost based on various
actuarial assumptions regarding future experiemceuthe plans. In addition, the Company has urddrdeferred compensation and
supplemental executive retirement plans for setecterent and former employees and officers thatide benefits that cannot be paid frol
qualified retirement plan due to Internal Revenwel€restrictions. These plans are nonqualified utigelnternal Revenue Code, and assets
used to fund benefit payments are not segregated dther assets of the Company, therefore, in géreeparticipant's or beneficiary's claim
to benefits under these plans is as a generaltoredi

TREASURY STOCK

Treasury stock purchases are recorded at coste Theme no treasury stock purchases in 2005 and 202003, the Company purchased
183,114 shares of treasury stock at an averaget$41.67 per share, respectively. 160,114 oktiaes purchased by the Company in 2003
related to a privately negotiated stock repurchiasa Jewelcor Management Inc. The shares were psezhat $14.60 per share and
represented approximately 6.1% of the Companystauding common stock as of December 31, 2002 pTikiately negotiated transaction
was not part of the share repurchase program éttefibr that period. The Company believes repuelpagsgrams to be in the best interest of
its shareholders as a method to enhance long-tesnelsolder value.
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INCOME TAXES

Provisions for income taxes are based on taxesmilyrpayable or refundable and deferred incomedan temporary differences between
the tax basis of assets and liabilities and thegiorted amounts in the financial statements. Dedietax assets and liabilities are reported in the
financial statements at currently enacted incomeates applicable to the period in which the def@tax assets and liabilities are expecte

be realized or settled.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividgigncome by the weighted average number of comshares outstanding throughout e
year. Diluted earnings per share gives effect tigkted average shares that would be outstandingrasg the exercise of issued stc
options using the treasury stock method.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Accounting principles generally require that redagd revenue, expenses, gains and losses be iddludet income. Although certain
changes in assets and liabilities, such as uneghjains and losses on availabledate securities, are reported as a separate comipoithe
equity section of the statement of condition, siteims, along with net income, are components ofgreimensive income.

The components of other comprehensive income (lrssyelated tax effects for the years ended:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(In thousands) 2005 2004 2003
Gross change in unrealized gains on

securities available for sale $ (1,835) $ (843) $681
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses

included in net income 205 (772) (542)

(1,630) (1,615) 139

Tax effect 652 646 (56)
Net of tax amount $ (978) $ (969) $ 83

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain amounts in the 2004 and 2003 consolidateshéial statements have been reclassified to confo the current year presentation.
These reclassifications had no effect on net incampreviously reported.

NOTE 2: NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Stansl&uoiard (FASB) issued Statement No. 123(R), "SBased Payment." Statement No.
123(R) revised Statement No. 123, "Accounting flac§-Based Compensation,” and supersedes APB @phifio 25, "Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees," and its related implemenmajisdance. Statement No. 123(R) will require consa¢ion costs related to share-based
payment transactions to be recognized in the fimhstatements (with limited exceptions). The antmfrcompensation cost will be measu
based on the grant-date fair value of the equityability instruments issued. Compensation codtlvé recognized over the period that an
employee provides service in exchange for the award

On April 14, 2005, the Securities and Exchange Casion ("SEC") adopted a rule that amends the ciamgd dates for Financial
Accounting Standards Board's Statement of Finadaabunting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), "Stiased Payment" ("SFAS No.
123R"). Under the rule, the Company is requireddopt SFAS No. 123R in the first annual period beigig after June 15, 2005. Since
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the Company's options are fully granted and vestedCompany does not anticipate the adoptionhaile any impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

In March 2005, the SEC issued Staff Accounting &irl No. 107 ("SAB No. 107"), "Share-Based Paymegmtviding guidance on option
valuation methods, the accounting for income téeat$ of share-based payment arrangements upoti@aop SFAS No. 123(R), and the
disclosures in MD&A subsequent to the adoption. Toepany will provide SAB No. 107 required disclossiupon adoption of SFAS No.
123(R).

In January 2003, the FASB's Emerging Issues TasteH&ITF) issued EITF Issue No. 03-1, "The Mearoh@ther-Than-Temporary
Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investaf€ITF 03-1"), and in March 2004, the EITF issumdupdate. EITF 03-1 addresses the
meaning of other-than-temporary impairment andyiglication to certain debt and equity securitid3F 03-1 aids in the determination of
impairment of an investment and gives guidance éilse measurement of impairment loss and the rétogmand disclosures of other-than-
temporary investments. EITF 03-1 also provides dehto determine other-than-temporary impairmemaisvidence-based judgment about
the recovery of the fair value up to the cost @fitivestment by considering the severity and domadif the impairment in relation to the
forecasted recovery of the fair value. In July 200ASB adopted the recommendation of its staffulify key parts of EITF 03-1. The staff's
recommendations were to nullify the guidance ondibermination of whether an investment is impaasdet forth in paragraphs 10-18 of
Issue 03-1 and not to provide additional guidantéhe meaning of other-than-temporary impairmergtdad, the staff recommends entities
recognize other-than-temporary impairments by dpplgxisting accounting literature such as paragrepof SFAS 115.

In July 2005, the FASB issued a proposed interpogtaf FAS 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes" darify certain aspects of accounting
for uncertain tax positions, including issues mdiatio the recognition and measurement of thospdaitions. If adopted as proposed, any
adjustments required to be recorded as a resali@fting the interpretation would be reflected asrmaulative effect from a change in
accounting principle. We are currently in the pgxcef determining the impact of adoption of theiiptetation as proposed on our financial
position and results of operations.
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NOTE 3: INVESTMENT SECURITIES - AVAILABLE -FOR-SALE

The amortized cost and estimated fair value ofstment securities are summarized as follows:

DE CEMBER 31, 2005
G ROSS GROSS ESTIMATED
AMORTIZED UNREAL IZED UNREALIZED FAIR
(In thousands) COST G AINS LOSSES VALUE
Bond investment securities:
US Treasury and agencies $ 20,713 $ - $ (746) $19,967
State and political subdivisions 11,177 2 (199) 10,980
Corporate 5,936 24 (106) 5,854
Mortgage-backed 31,565 67 (914) 30,718
Total 69,391 93 (1,965) 67,519
Equity investments 6,998 14 (292) 6,720
Total investment securities $ 76,389 $ 1 07 $(2,257) $74,239
DE CEMBER 31, 2004
G ROSS GROSS ESTIMATED
AMORTIZED UNREAL IZED UNREALIZED FAIR
(In thousands) COST G AINS LOSSES VALUE
Bond investment securities:
US Treasury and agencies $ 21,609 $ 4 $ (401) $21,212
State and political subdivisions 8,881 1 62 (31) 9,012
Corporate 5,919 92 (52) 5,959
Mortgage-backed 32,213 92 (278) 32,027
Total 68,622 3 50 (762) 68,210
Equity investments 6,967 5 (113) 6,859
Total investment securities $ 75589 $ 3 55 $ (875) $ 75,069

Gross gains of $190,000, $828,000 and $581,002(0%, 2004 and 2003, respectively and gross la¥s$395,000, $56,000 and $38,000 for
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively were realizesades and calls of securities. The tax benefitedlto net losses on investment securities
was $80,000 for 2005. Tax expense related to ries @m investment securities was $301,000 and $201for 2004 and 2003, respectively.
The $395,000 loss in 2005 represented impairmese®recognized on equity investments and thedasgnized from the sale of
commercial bank portfolio securities.

Investment securities with a carrying value of appnately $38,899,000 at December 31, 2005 werdgal to collateralize certain deposit
and borrowing arrangements.
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value of delgstments at December 31, 2005 by contractutdniyaare shown below. Expected
maturities may differ from contractual maturitieschuse borrowers may have the right to call orgyrebligations with or without penalties.

AMORTIZED ESTIMATED
(In thousands) COST FAIR VALUE
Due in one year or less $ 3,039 $ 3,008
Due after one year through five years 16,179 15,699
Due after five years through ten years 11,856 11,432
Due after ten years 6,752 6,662
Mortgage-backed securities 31,565 30,718
Totals $ 69,391 $ 67,519

The Company's investment securities' gross uneghlzsses and fair value, aggregated by investoaagory and length of time that
individual securities have been in a continuougalized loss position is as follows:

DECEMBER 31, 2005

LESS THAN TWELVE MONTHS TWELVE MONTHS OR MORE TOTAL

UNREA LIZED FAIR UNREALIZED FAIR UNREALIZED FAIR
(In thousands) LOS SES VALUE LOSSES VALUE LOSSES VALUE
US Treasury and agency securities $ ( 106) $4,130 $ (639) $15,837 $ (746) $ 19,967
State and political subdivision securities ( 152) 8,872 47) 1,491 (199) 10,363
Corporate securities (35) 1,965 (71) 1,896 (106) 3,861
Mortgage-backed securities ( 322) 13,814 (593) 15,073 (914) 28,887
Equity investment securities - - (292) 6,135 (292) 6,135

$ ( 615) $28,781 $(1,642) $40,432 $(2,257) $ 69,213

DECEMBER 31, 2004

LESS THAN TWELVE MONTHS TWELVE MONTHS OR MORE TOTAL

UNREA LIZED FAIR UNREALIZED FAIR UNREALIZED FAIR
(In thousands) LOS SES VALUE LOSSES VALUE LOSSES VALUE
US Treasury and agency securities $ ( 370) $18,903 $ (31) $ 981 $ (401) $ 19,884
State and political subdivision securities (31) 2,411 - 56 (31) 2,467
Corporate securities (11) 976 (41) 936 (52) 1,912
Mortgage-backed securities ( 215) 19,949 (63) 3,301 (278) 23,250
Equity investment securities (10) 240 (103) 3,547 (113) 3,787

$ ( 637) $42,479 $ (238) $8,821 $ (875) $ 51,300

The Company reviews its securities for impairmenéast quarterly, and as a result of this reviewpairment charges of $196,000 were
recorded during December 31, 2005. No impairmesgds were recognized in 2004 and 2003.

At December 31, 2005 59 mortgage-backed and 33&#Sury and agency securities have unrealizeddo$bese unrealized losses relate
principally to changes in interest rates subseqteetite acquisition of specific securities. Nonetaf securities in this category had an
unrealized loss that exceeded 6% of book valueaamdjority had unrealized losses totaling less 8tarof book value. The Company has
intent and ability to hold the individual securtito maturity or market price recovery.

Page 5(



At December 31, 2005, 32 state and political subitin securities and 4 corporate securities havealized losses. In analyzing the issuer's
financial condition, management considers the itrgimalyst's reports, financial performance arajgmted target prices of investment
analysts within a one-year time frame. None ofdibeurities in this category had an unrealized lhasexceeded 5% of book value and a
majority had unrealized losses totaling less tHano? book value. The Company has the intent ankityatn hold the individual securities to
maturity or market price recovery.

At December 31, 2005, 3 equity securities had dizeghlosses. One of these securities is a mutual backed by adjustable rate mortgage-
backed securities and has an unrealized loss a#f386ok value. The unrealized loss relates prifdiga changes in interest rates subsequent
to the acquisition of the mutual fund. A secondigsecurity is a mutual fund consisting primarnfinvestment grade dividend-paying
common stocks of large capitalization companies, companies with market capitalization in exa&s5 billion. A review of the underlying
securities indicates no individually impaired haolgé and there is no indication that the profitépilif these corporations is impaired beyond
the economic cycle. As such, the decline in mavkéie is not considered to be other-than-tempgraripaired. The third equity security has
unrealized losses totaling $10,000, which is deetodmk immaterial to the consolidated financiatestzents.

NOTE 4: LOANS

Major classifications of loans at December 31,aéollows:

(In thousands) 2005 200 4
REAL ESTATE MORTGAGES:
Conventional $116,423 $117,60 8
Construction 2,607 3,49 7
Commercial 31,845 29,87 4
150,875 150,97 9
OTHER LOANS:
Consumer 3,363 3,48 4
Home Equity/2nd Mortgage 16,319 15,02 1
Lease financing 334 71 5
Commercial 14,741 12,60 5
Municipal loans 3,259 3,51 4
38,016 35,33 9
Total loans 188,891 186,31 8
Net deferred loan costs 677 63 4
Less allowance for loan losses  (1,679) (1,82 7)
Loans receivable, net $187,889 $185,12 5

The Company grants mortgage and consumer loansstoroers throughout Oswego and parts of Onondagaies. Although the Company
has a diversified loan portfolio, a substantialtjpor of its debtor's ability to honor their contigés dependent upon the counties' employment
and economic conditions.
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The following represents the approximate actividgaciated with loans to officers and directorsmythe fiscal year ending December 31,
2005:

(In thousands)

Balance at beginning of year $ 4,910
Originations 3,065
Principal payments (2,394)

Balance at end of year $ 5,581

NOTE 5: ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Changes in the allowance for loan losses for tlae gaded December 31, are summarized as follows:

(In thousands) 2005 2004 2 003
Balance at beginning of year $1,827 $1,715 $1 ,481
Recoveries credited 49 61 37
Provision for loan losses 311 738 598
Loans charged-off (508) (687) (401)
Balance at end of year $1,679 $1,827 $1 ,715

The following is a summary of information pertaigito impaired loans for the years ending December 3

(In thousands) 20 05 2004 2003
Impaired loans without a valuation allowance $ $ZB:
Impaired loans with a valuation allowance 2, 452 3,110 3,804
Total impaired loans $2, 452$31-10-$3804
Valuation allowance related to impaired loans $ 90$ 76-0$-527
Average investment in impaired loans $2, 856$36-11-$3446
Interest income recognized on impaired loans $ 175$1E;3é 139
Interest income recognized on a cash basison
impaired loans $ -$ -$% 93

As of December 31, 2005, no additional funds ararodted to be advanced in connection with impalceths.

The amount of loans on which the Company has ceasgding interest aggregated approximately $1088band $1,851,000 at December
31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. There were noslgaist due ninety days or more and still accruitgrést at December 31, 2005 or 2004.

NOTE 6: SERVICING

Loans serviced for others are not included in te@mpanying consolidated statements of condititne Tnpaid principal balances of
mortgage and other loans serviced for others we6e390,000, 53,000,000 and $47,600,000 at Decefihe&r005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

The balance of capitalized servicing rights incliidie other assets at December 31, 2005 and 20@®1$%46,000 and $198,000, respectively.

Page 52



The following summarizes mortgage-servicing rigtdapitalized and amortized:

(In thousands) 2005 2004 2003
Mortgage servicing rights capitalized $ 70 $ 9 9 $179
Mortgage servicing rights amortized $ 123 $ 15 8 $122

NOTE 7: PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
A summary of premises and equipment at Decembeis 3, follows:

(In thousands) 2005 2004

Land $1,150 $ 1,150
Buildings 6,590 5,587
Furniture, fixture and equipment 6,120 5,597
Construction in progress 119 508

$13,979 $12,842
Less: Accumulated depreciation 5,959 5,262

$8,020 $7,580

NOTE 8: GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

A summary of intangible assets is as follows:

2005 2004
GROSS GROSS
CARRYING ACCUMULATED CARRYING ACCUMULATED
(In thousands) AMOUNT AMORTIZATION AMOUNT AMORTIZATION
Core deposit intangible $ 1,111 $ (707) $ 1,111 $ (484)

Amortization expense related to core deposit intaag is estimated to total $223,000 and $181,00@He years ending December 31, 2006
and 2007, respectively. Amortization of goodwildathe core deposit intangible is deductible forpaxposes.

NOTE 9: DEPOSITS

A summary of deposits at December 31, is as follows

(In thousands) 2005 20 04
Savings accounts $60,176 $66 ,265
Time accounts 72,121 66 ,133
Time accounts over $100,000 24,034 18 ,250
Money management accounts 39,009 44 ,189
Demand deposit interest-bearing 18,259 20 ,339
Demand deposit noninterest-bearing 20,241 19 ,159
Mortgage escrow funds 2,537 2 ,337
$236,377 $236 ,672
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At December 31, 2005, the scheduled maturitieghtd tleposits are as follows:

(In thousands)

YEAR OF MATURITY:

2006 $51,724
2007 21,221
2008 8,952
2009 5,780
2010 1,910
Thereafter 6,568
$96,155

NOTE 10: BORROWED FUNDS
The composition of borrowings at December 31 i®dsws:

(In thousands) 2005 2004

SHORT-TERM FHLB ADVANCES:
FHLB Advances $2,000 $ 1,000

Total short-term borrowings $ 2,000 $ 1,000

LONG-TERM:
FHLB Repurchase agreements $ 3,400 $ 3,400
FHLB advances 25,960 30,960

Total long-term borrowings $29,360 $34,360

The principal balance, interest rate and matuffithe above borrowings at December 31, 2005 i9k®is:

TERM PRINC IPAL  RATES
(Dollars in thousands)

Short-term advances with FHLB $ 2,000 3.97%-4.13%
Long-term:

Repurchase agreements (due in 2006 and 2009) 3,400 5.56% -5.85%
Advances with FHLB

due within 1 year 2,000 4.72%-5.32%
due within 2 years 1 1,350 3.00%-5.04%
due within 3 years 6,610 2.67%-5.98%
due within 4 years 1,000 6.00%
due within 5 years 5,000 4.39%
Total advances with FHLB $ 2 5,960

Total long-term borrowings $ 2 9,360

The repurchase agreements with the Federal Home Baek ("FHLB") are collateralized by certain intregnt securities having a carrying
value of $3,689,000 at December 31, 2005. The teodhis under the Company's control. The linerefit agreement with the FHLB is used
for liquidity purposes. Interest on this line igelenined at the time of borrowing. The average paiid on the overnight line during 2005
approximated 3.57%. At December 31, 2005, $28,T®byias available under the line of credit. In addito the overnight line of credit
program, the Company also has access to the FHIeBm Advance Program under which it can borrowaattous terms and interest rates.
Residential mortgage loans with a carrying valug&%,899,000 and FHLB stock with a carrying vali®h 805,000 have been pledged by
the Company under a blanket collateral agreemesg¢are the Company's line of credit and term
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borrowings. The Company also maintains a $5,000ljd@0of credit with a correspondent bank. Intemsthe line is determined at the tim¢
borrowing. The Company did not draw on the lineily2005. Investment securities with a carryingreabf $6,384,000 at December 31,
2005 collateralize the line of credit.

The Company has a non-consolidated subsidiary, tPashfinder Statutory Trust I, of which 100% of tommon equity is owned by the
Company. The Trust issued $5,000,000 of 30 yeatifig rate Company-obligated pooled capital seiesribf Pathfinder Statutory Trust I.
The Company borrowed the proceeds of the capitalrgees from its subsidiary by issuing floatingegunior subordinated deferrable interest
debentures having substantially similar terms. Gdq@tal securities mature in 2032 and are treagetiex 1 capital by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Company and the Office of Thrift SupeovisThe capital securities of the trust are a pddtust preferred fund of Preferred Term
Securities VI, Ltd. and are tied to the 3-month OIB plus 3.45% (7.97% at December 31, 2005 and 6 &tM@&cember 31, 2004) with a five-
year call provision. The Company guarantees ahes$e securities. The Company capitalized $15lop@d@ferred financing costs associa
with the debt issuance, which are being amortized straight-line basis over the 5-year periodaibdate.

The Company's equity interest in the trust subsjdid $155,000 is reported in "Other assets". Eguiatory reporting purposes, the Federal
Reserve Board has indicated that the preferredisesuwill continue to qualify as Tier 1 Capitallgect to previously specified limitations,
until further notice. If regulators make a deteration that Trust Preferred Securities can no lohgeconsidered in regulatory capital, the
securities become callable and the Company maenedeem.

NOTE 11: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND DEFERRED COMPENSATIO N AND SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT PLANS

The Company has a noncontributory defined benefisn plan covering substantially all employed® fplan provides defined benefits
based on years of service and final average sdtapddition, the Company provides certain heattti ife insurance benefits for eligible
retired employees. The healthcare plan is conwifyuwith participants' contributions adjusted arllygahe life insurance plan is
noncontributory. Employees with less than 14 ye@uservice as of January 1, 1995, are not elidifnlehe health and life insurance retirenr
benefits.

The Company uses an October 1 measurement dateefdefined benefit plan and postretirement beipéit.
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The following tables set forth the changes in tlamis benefit obligation, fair value of plan assatd prepaid (accrued) benefit (cost) as of
December 31:

P ENSION BENEFITS POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS
(In thousands) 2005 2004 2005 2004
CHANGE IN BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 3,745 $ 3,382 $309 $ 367
Service cost 151 155 2 2
Interest cost 229 207 18 19
Actuarial gain (loss) 378 153 46 (58)
Plan participants' contributions - - 6 12
Benefit paid (142) (152) (27) (33)
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 4,361 $ 3,745 $354 $ 309
CHANGE IN PLAN ASSETS:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 3,154 $ 2,792 $ - $ -
Actual return on plan assets 388 236 - -
Plan participants' contributions - - 6 12
Benefits paid (142) (152) (27) (33)
Employer contributions 670 278 21 21
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 4,070 $ 3,154 $ - $ -
COMPONENTS OF PREPAID/ACCRUED BENEFIT COST:
Unfunded status $ (291) $ (591) $(354) $(309)
Unrecognized transition obligation - - 115 134
Unrecognized actuarial net loss/(gain) 1,656 1,478 34 (13)
Prepaid/(accrued) benefit/(cost) $ 1,365 $ 887 $(205) $(188)

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defibedefit plan was $3,602,000 and $3,042,000 at Dbeefil, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
The significant assumptions used in determiningdeefit obligation as of December 31, 2005, 2082 2003 are as follows:

P ENSION BENEFITS POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003

Weighted average discount rate 588% 6.25% 6.50% 5.88% 6.25% 6.00%
Expected long term rate of return on plan assets 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% - - -
Rate of increase in future compensation levels 3.00% 3.50% 4.00% - - -

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a signifeffect on the amounts reported for the pastraent health care plans. The annual r
of increase in the per capita cost of covered nadicd prescription drug benefits for year-end wakions were assumed to be 9.5% and
10.0%, respectively. The rates were assumed t@dsergradually to 3.75% in 2011 and remain ati¢lvat thereafter. A onpercentage poil
change in the health care cost trend rates would tiee following effects:

1PE RCENTAGE 1 PERCENTAGE
POINT POINT
(In thousands) IN CREASE DECREASE
Effect on total of service and interest
cost components $ 21 $ (20)
Effect on post retirement benefit obligation 15 (11)
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The composition of the net periodic benefit plastdor the years ended December 31, 2005, 2002@08l is as follows:

PENSION
(In thousands) 2005
Service cost $ 151 $
Interest cost 229

Amortization of transition obligation -

Amortization of gains and losses 96
Expected return on plan assets (285) (
Net periodic benefit plan cost $ 191 $

BENEFITS POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

2004 2003 2005 2004 2003

155 $154 $ 2$ 2% 2

207 200 18 19 21
- - 19 18 18

94 106 - - 1

254) (227) - - -

202 $233 $39 $ 39 $ 42

The significant assumptions used in determiningniteperiodic benefit plan cost for years endedebdzer 31:

Weighted average discount rate
Expected long term rate of return on plan assets
Rate of increase in future compensation levels

PENSION BENEFITS POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003

5.88% 6.25% 6.50% 5.88% 6.25% 6.00%
9.00% 9.00% 9.00% - - -
3.00% 3.50% 4.00% - - -

The long-term rate-of-return-on-assets assumptias set based on historical returns earned by equitid fixed income securities, adjusted
to reflect expectations of future returns as apjpigethe plan's target allocation of asset cladsgsities and fixed income securities were
assumed to earn real rates of return in the raoig@®.0% and 2-6.0%, respectively. The long-temflation rate was estimated to be 3.0%.
When these overall return expectations are appii¢de plan's target allocation, the expectedohteturn is determined to be 9.0%, which is

roughly the midpoint of the range of expected metur

The Company's pension plan weighted-average a$sedtions at October 1, the measurement datesbgtaategory

ASSET CATEGORY

2%
28%

Equity securities
Debt securities

Total 100%

2005 2004

69%
31%

100%

Plan assets are invested in six diversified investrfunds of the RSI Retirement Trust (the "Trysd'ho load series open-ended mutual fund.
The investment funds include four equity mutualdsiand two bond mutual funds, each with its owregtment objectives, investment
strategies and risks, as detailed in the Trust'spg@ctus. The Trust has been given discretiondythn Sponsor to determine the appropriate
strategic asset allocation versus plan liabiliteessgoverned by the Trust's Statement of Invest@éjectives and Guidelines (the

"Guidelines").

The long-term investment objective is to be invé$k8% in equity securities (equity mutual fundsjl 8% in debt securities (bond mutual
funds). If the plan is underfunded under the Guigs, the bond fund portion will be temporarily ieased to 50% in order to lessen asset
value volatility. When the plan is no longer undexded, the bond fund portion will be decreased bha@5%. Asset rebalancing is performed
at least annually, with interim adjustments madenmvtihe investment mix varies more than 5% frontahget (i.e., a 10% target range).

The investment goal is to achieve investment resh#t will contribute to the proper funding of fhension plan by exceeding the rate of
inflation over the long-term. In addition, investmienanagers for the Trust are expected to
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provide above average performance when comparértitopeer managers. Performance volatility is atemitored. Risk/volatility is further
managed by the distinct investment objectives ohead the Trust funds and the diversification witkeiach fund.

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2006, #ekBexpects to contribute approximately $192,00B¢oPlan.
The following benefit payments, which reflect extgecfuture service, as appropriate, are expectée fmaid.

YEARS ENDING DECEMBER 31:

(In thousands)

2006 $148
2007 148
2008 145
2009 148
2010 152
Years 2011 - 2015 981

The Company also offers a 401(k) plan to its emgésy Contributions to this plan by the Company 445,000, $92,000 and $84,000 for
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Company maintains optional deferred compensglians for its directors whereby fees normallyereed are deferred and paid by the
Company based upon a payment schedule commencauge &5 and continue monthly for 10 years. Direcioust serve on the board for a
minimum of 5 years to be eligible for the Plan.Ddcember 31, 2005 and 2004, other liabilities idelapproximately $1,412,0000 and
$1,276,000, respectively, relating to deferred cengation. Deferred compensation expense for thes yemled December 31, 2005, 2004 and
2003 amounted to approximately $211,000, $185,0@0$416,000, respectively.

The Company has a supplemental executive retirepiantfor the benefit of certain executive officeh$ December 31, 2005 and 2004, ol
liabilities include approximately $424,000 and $00® accrued under these plans. Compensation exjreriades approximately $56,000,
$53,000 and $68,000 relating to the supplementdgtive retirement plan for 2005, 2004 and 2008peetively.

To fund the benefits under these plans, the Comisatie owner of single premium life insurance giek on participants in the non-qualified
retirement plans. At December 31, 2005 and 20@césh value of these policies was $5,987,000 &1tb8,000, respectively.

NOTE 12: STOCK BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

In February 1997, the Board of Directors approvwedation plan and granted options there under aiitlexercise price equal to the market
value of the Company's shares at the date of dramater the Stock Option Plan, up to 132,249 optiuange been authorized for grant of
incentive stock options and nonqualified stock adi

In July 2001, the Board approved the issuance @gf®Bstock options remaining in the 1997 Stock @pRlan. The exercise price is equal to
the market value of the Company's shares at tleealarant ($8.34). The options granted underdbhaance have a 10-year term with one-
third vesting upon grant date and the remainingimgsnd becoming exercisable ratably over a 2-peaiod.
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Activity in the Stock Option Plan is as follows:

WEIGHTED
OPTIONS AVERAGE SHARES

(Shares in thousands) OUTSTANDING EX ERCISE PRICE EXERCISABLE
Outstanding at December 31, 2002 93 $ 7.27 80
Exercised 5) 7.49

Outstanding at December 31, 2003 88 $ 7.25 88
Exercised (18) 7.75

Outstanding at December 31, 2004 70 $ 7.12 70
Exercised (13) 6.58

Expired (11) 6.58

Outstanding at December 31, 2005 46 $ 7.41 46

The Bank sponsors an Employee Stock Ownership (BI8®P) for employees who have attained the agé ah? who have completed a 12
month period of employment with the Bank during ethihey worked at least 1,000 hours. The Bank @mseti 92,574 shares of common
stock on behalf of the ESOP. The purchase of theeshwas funded by a loan from the Company andrikarned shares are pledged as
collateral for the borrowing. As the loan was repa@arned shares were released from collaterahdochted to the participants. As shares
were earned, the Bank records compensation expetise average market price of the shares durimgéhiod. Cash dividends received on
unearned shares were allocated among the partisipad were reported as compensation expense. EQ@pensation expense, including
cash dividends received on unearned shares, appaited $88,000, $136,000 and $129,000 for the yerated December 31, 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively. Total earned shares at DeceBihe2005, 2004 and 2003 were 92,574, 86,998 aj@679respectively. Unearned ESOP
shares are not considered outstanding for purpdfsgsmputing earnings per share. All shares weneeshat December 31, 2005.

NOTE 13: INCOME TAXES
The provision for income taxes for the years eridedember 31, is as follows:

(In thousands) 2005 2004 2003

Current $(160) $ - $294
Deferred 109 502 307

$(51) $502 $601

The provision for income taxes includes the follogyi

(In thousands) 2005 2004 200 3
Federal Income Tax $(29) $520 $63 1
New York State Franchise Tax (22) (18) (3 0)

$(51) $502 $60 1
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The components of net deferred tax asset, inclidether assets for the years ended December 8 hsdiollows:

(In thousands) 2005 2004
ASSETS:
Deferred compensation $ 71 5 % 672
Allowance for loan losses 65 4 712
Postretirement benefits 8 2 74
Mortgage recording tax credit carryforward 36 1 304
Investment securities 86 5 213
Other 12 1 49
$2,79 8 $2,024
LIABILITIES:
Prepaid pension (53 2) (345)
Depreciation (64 7) (671)
Accretion 3 7). (47)
Loan origination fees (25 0) (236)
Intangible assets 43 2) (328)
Prepaid expenses 7 9) (119)
$(1,97 7) $(1,746)
Net deferred tax asset $ 82 1 $ 278

The Company has a New York State mortgage recotdigredit that has no carry forward limitatiomse Company has determined that no
valuation allowance is necessary as it is mordylikean not deferred tax assets will be realizedugh carryback to taxable income in prior
years, future reversals of existing temporary déffees and through future taxable income. A rediation of the federal statutory income 1
rate to the effective income tax rate for the yesnded December 31, is as follows:

2005 2004 2003
Federal statutory income tax rate 34.0% 34.0% 34.0%
State tax (3.0) (0.9) (0.6)
Tax-exempt interest income, net of TEFRA (44.8) (6.0) (5.1)
Increase in value of life insurance (18.1) (3.1) (2.6)
Other 19.5 23 1.0
Effective income tax rate (12.4)% 26.3% 26.7%
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The following is a reconciliation of basic to dit earnings per share for the years ended Decedtber

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) EARN INGS SHARES EPS
2005 Net Income $ 462

Basic EPS 462 2,456 $0.19
Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options - 25

Diluted EPS $ 462 2,481 $0.19
2004 Net Income $ 1,405

Basic EPS 1,405 2,435 $0.58
Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options - 44

Diluted EPS $ 1,405 2,479 $0.57
2003 Net Income $ 1,652

Basic EPS 1,652 2,424 $0.68
Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options - 48

Diluted EPS $ 1,652 2,472 $0.67

NOTE 15: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is a party to financial instrumentswitf-balance sheet risk in the normal course Gifess to meet the financing needs of its
customers. These financial instruments include ci@ments to extend credit and standby letters aditr&uch commitments involve, to
varying degrees, elements of credit risk in exadsbe amount recognized in the consolidated statgrf condition. The contractual amount
of those commitments to extend credit reflectsetkient of involvement the commitment has in thigipalar class of financial instrument.
The Company's exposure to credit loss in the evenbnperformance by the other party to the finahicistrument for commitments to exte
credit is represented by the contractual amouth@fnstrument.

The Company's exposure to credit loss is repreddnte¢he contractual amount of these commitmerite. Company uses the same credit
policies in making commitments as it does for ofebee sheet instruments.
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At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the following firnahimstruments were outstanding whose contractuartsorepresent credit risk:

CONTRACT AMOUNT
(In thousands) 20 05 2004
Commitments to grant loans $ 6,3 71 $5,120
Unfunded commitments under lines of credit 12,3 61 12,021
Standby letters of credit 7 98 1,106

Commitments to extend credit are agreements totteadcustomer as long as there is no violatioanyf condition established in the contract.
Commitments generally have fixed expiration datestber termination clauses and may require paymeatfee. Since some of the
commitment amounts are expected to expire witheurtdodrawn upon, the total commitment amounts daroessarily represent future cash
requirements. The Company evaluates each custoonedi#worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The rtnobgollateral obtained, if deemed
necessary by the Company upon extension of cisdigsed on management's credit evaluation ofdheter party. Collateral held varies but
may include residential real estate and incomeymiog) commercial properties.

Unfunded commitments under standby letters of treeliolving credit lines and overdraft protectegreements are commitments for
possible future extensions of credit to existingtomers. These lines of credit usually do not dordaaspecified maturity date and may not be
drawn upon to the total extent to which the Compiargommitted.

Outstanding letters of credit written are condiiboommitments issued by the Bank to guarantepehi@rmance of a customer to a third
party. The majority of these standby letters oflitrexpire within the next twelve months. The ctetik involved in issuing letters of credit is
essentially the same as that involved in extendthgr loan commitments. The Bank requires colla®rpporting these letters of credit as
deemed necessary. Management believes that thega®obtained through a liquidation of such cailédteould be sufficient to cover the
maximum potential amount of future payments requireder the corresponding guarantees. The amouhedibility as of December 31,
2005 and 2004 or guarantees under standby lefteredit issued is not material.

The Company leases land and leasehold improvemades agreements that expire in various years igitewal options over the next 30
years. Rental expense, included in operating exggemsnounted to $42,000, $41,000 and $41,000 if, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
October 2002, the Company entered into a land heéheone of its directors on an arms-length babie rent expense paid to the related
party during 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $23,000, $®1abid $21,000, respectively. Approximate minimemial commitments for the
noncancelable operating leases are as follows:

YEARS ENDING DECEMBER 31:

(In thousands)

2006 $47
2007 47
2008 51
2009 51
2010 51
Thereafter 115

Total minimum lease payments $362

NOTE 16: DIVIDENDS AND RESTRICTIONS

The board of directors of Pathfinder Bancorp, M.Hdgtermines whether the Holding Company will veadr receive dividends declared by
the Company each time the Company declares a didjdehich is expected to be on a quarterly badis. Holding Company may elect to
receive dividends and utilize such funds
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to pay expenses or for other allowable purposes.Qffice of Thrift Supervision ("OTS") has indicdtthat (i) the Holding Company shall
provide the OTS annually with written notice ofiiiéent to waive its dividends prior to the proptskate of the dividend, and the OTS shall
have the authority to approve or deny any dividead/er request; (ii) if a waiver is granted, diviais waived by the Holding Company will
be excluded from the Company's capital accountptgooses of calculating dividend payments to niipahareholders; (iii) the Company
shall establish a restricted capital account inatm@unt of any dividends waived by the Holding Camyp and the amount of any dividend
waived by the Holding Company shall be availabledfeclaration as a dividend solely to the Holdirgr®any. During 2005, the Company
paid cash dividends totaling $325,000 to the Hgdiompany. For the second and fourth quarters gnhlline 30, 2005 and December 31,
2005, respectively, the Holding Company waivedrigbt to receive its portion of the cash dividew@slared on June 28, 2005 and Decer
27, 2005, respectively, which totaled $325,000. Toenpany maintains a restricted capital accourtt wi$1,532,000 balance, representing
the Holding Company's portion of dividends waive&December 31, 2005. During 2004 and 2003, thiding Company waived dividen
totaling $320,000 and $317,000, respectively.

The Company's ability to pay dividends to its shatders is largely dependent on the Bank's alititgay dividends to the Company. In
addition to state law requirements and the capggiirements discussed in Note 17 the circumstameesr which the Bank may pay
dividends are limited by federal statutes, regafeiand policies. The amount of retained earniaegally available under these regulations
approximated $1,670,000 as of December 31, 2005d&ids paid by the Bank to the Company would ledipited if the effect thereof
would cause the Bank's capital to be reduced bafgplicable minimum capital requirements.

NOTE 17: REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company (on a consolidated basis) and the Benkubject to various regulatory capital requinet®@dministered by the federal banl
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requir@siean initiate certain mandatory and possiblyitauthl discretionary actions by
regulators that, if undertaken, could have a dineaterial effect on the Bank's financial statemedteler capital adequacy guidelines and the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective actittile Company and the Bank must meet specific cagitidlelines that involve quantitative
measures of the their assets, liabilities, andagedff-balance sheet items as calculated undedaayy accounting practices. The capital
amounts and classifications are also subject thtgtize judgments by the regulators about compdseisk weightings, and other factors.
Prompt corrective action provisions are not appliedao bank holding companies.

Quantitative measures established by regulati@nsure capital adequacy require the Bank to maimta@iounts and ratios (set forth in the
table below) of total and Tier 1 capital (as dedfime the regulations) to risk-weighted assets @igdd), and of Tier 1 capital (as defined) to
average assets (as defined). Management believe$§ December 31, 2005, that the Bank meets aitalamlequacy requirements to which it
is subject.
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As of December 31, 2005, the Bank's most recerificaiton from the Federal Deposit Insurance Cogpion categorized the Bank as "well-
capitalized", under the regulatory framework foompt corrective action. To be categorized as "waflitalized", the Bank must maintain
total risk based, Tier 1 risk-based and Tier 1dage ratios as set forth in the tables below. Theeeno conditions or events since that
notification that management believes have chatige@ank's category. The Company's and the Baniislacapital amounts and ratios a:
December 31, 2005and 2004 are also presented foltbwing table.

"To Be Well
Capitalized"
For Capital Under Prompt
A ctual Adequacy Purposes Corrective Provisions
(Dollars in thousands) Amoun t Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
COMPANY
As of December 31, 2005:
Total Core Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $24,8 02 13.5% $14,706 8.0% N/A  N/A
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)  $23,1 23 12.6% $7,353 4.0% N/A N/A
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets) $23,1 23 7.6% $12,167 4.0% N/A  N/A
BANK
As of December 31, 2005:
Total Core Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $22,9 57 12.6% $14,615 8.0% $18,269 10.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)  $21,2 78 11.7% $7,307 4.0% $10,961 6.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets) $21,2 78 7.1% $11,927 4.0% $14,909 5.0%
COMPANY
As of December 31, 2004:
Total Core Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $24,4 93 13.5% $14,472 8.0% N/A N/A
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)  $22,6 66 12.5% $7,236 4.0% N/A N/A
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets) $22,6 66 7.7% $11,775 4.0% N/A  N/A
BANK
As of December 31, 2004:
Total Core Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $22,9 74 12.8% $14,416 8.0% $18,020 10.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)  $21,1 47 11.7% $7,208 4.0% $10,812 6.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets) $21,1 47 7.1% $11,947 4.0% $14,934 5.0%

The Bank is required to maintain average balanogsand or with the Federal Reserve Bank. At Decer@be2005 and 2004, these reserve
balances amounted to $1,608,000 and $2,419,0Qtkcteely.

NOTE 18: FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

SFAS No. 107, "Disclosure About Fair Value of Fio@h Instruments,” requires disclosure of fair waloformation of financial instruments,
whether or not recognized in the consolidated statd of condition, for which it is practicable tstienate that value. In cases where quoted
market prices are not available, fair values asetian estimates using present value or otherti@aui@chniques. Those techniques are
significantly affected by the assumptions useduiiog the discount rate and estimates of futushdbws. In that regard, the derived fair
value estimates cannot be substantiated by conopaigsindependent markets and, in many cases, catlde realized in immediate
settlement of the instrument.

Management uses its best judgment in estimatinfgih@alue of the Company's financial instrumetiswever, there are inherent weakne
in any estimation technique. Therefore, for sultly all financial instruments, the fair valuetiesates herein are not necessarily indicative
of the amounts the Company could have realizedsales transaction on the dates indicated. The
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estimated fair value amounts have been measurefdtlsir respective year-ends, and have not beewakiated or updated for purposes of
these financial statements subsequent to thoseatsp dates. As such, the estimated fair valudbesfe financial instruments subsequent to
the respective reporting dates may be different tha amounts reported at each year-end.

The following information should not be interpretesian estimate of the fair value of the entire Gamy since a fair value calculation is only
provided for a limited portion of the Company'sedssand liabilities. Due to a wide range of valoiatiechniques and the degree of
subjectivity used in making the estimates, compasdetween the Company's disclosures and thasthef companies may not be
meaningful. The company, in estimating its fairueatlisclosures for financial instruments, useddiewing methods and assumptions:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - the carrying amountspapximate fair value.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES - fair values of securitie®dased on quoted market prices, where availllijeoted market prices are not
available, fair values are based on quoted marketgof comparable instruments.

LOANS AND MORTGAGE LOANS HELD-FOR-SALE - for varidé rate loans that reprice frequently and with igmificant credit risk,
fair values approximate carrying values. Fair valige fixed rate loans are estimated using diseadiobsh flow analysis, using interest rates
currently being offered for loans with similar teso borrowers of similar credit quality.

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK STOCK - the carrying amountsported approximate fair value.
MORTGAGE SERVICING RIGHTS - the carrying amount egppmates fair value.

ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE - the cariygg amounts of accrued interest receivable andlgayspproximate their
fair values.

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES - The fair values disclosed fdemand deposits (e.g., interest-bearing and nenaisit-bearing checking, passbook
savings and certain types of money management at)aare, by definition, equal to the amount pagairl demand at the reporting date (
their carrying amounts). Fair values for fixed-reggtificates of deposit are estimated using aadisted cash flow calculation that applies
interest rates currently being offered on certtseof deposits to a schedule of aggregated exgpemathly maturities on time deposits.

BORROWINGS - the fair values for short-term borrogé and junior subordinated debentures approxithatearrying amounts. The fair
values for long-term borrowings were estimated gisiiscounted cash flow analysis based on the Coygaarrent incremental borrowing
rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET INSTRUMENTS - Fair values for tRmmpany's off-balance sheet instruments are baséees currently charged
to enter into similar agreements, taking into actdhe remaining terms of the agreements and thetegarties' credit standing.
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2005

CARRYING ESTIMA
(Dollars in thousands) AMOUNTS FAIR VA

FINANCIAL ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,895 %
Investment securities 74,239 7
Mortgage loans held-for-sale -

Net Loans 187,889 18
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 1,805
Accrued interest receivable 1,678
Mortgage servicing rights 146

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:

Deposits $236,377 $ 23

Borrowed funds 31,360 3
Junior subordinated debentures 5,155

Accrued interest payable 161

OFF-BALANCE SHEET INSTRUMENTS:
Standby letter of credit $ -$
Commitments to extend credit -
Forward rate lock commitments -

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Comjsdfityancial instruments as of December 31 aregmtesl in the following table:

2004

CARRYING ESTIMATED

LUES AMOUNTS FAIR VALUES

7,895 $ 14,325 $ 14,325

4,239 75,069 75,069
- 2,159 2,329
9,598 185,125 190,034
1,805 1,768 1,768
1,678 1,505 1,505
146 198 198

6,552 $236,672 $ 237,410

3,883 35,360 36,360
5,155 5,155 5,155
161 143 143

NOTE 19: PARENT COMPANY - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

STATEMENTS OF CONDITION

(In thousands)

ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Receivable from bank subsidiary
Investment in subsidiaries

Due from subsidiaries

Other assets

Total assets

The following represents the condensed financiarmation of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. for years ethddecember 31:

2005 2004
$ 245 $ 982
19 -
- 41
24,602 25,698
1,125 240
207 243

$26,198 $27,204

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Accrued liabilities

Junior subordinated debentures

Shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

115 223
5,155 5,155
20,928 21,826

$26,198 $27,204
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STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In thousands)
Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest expense

Operating expense

Realized gain on sale of investment security
Amortization of deferred financing costs

Loss before tax benefit and equity in
undistributed net income of subsidiaries

Tax benefit

Loss before equity in undistributed net
income of subsidiaries
Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries

Net income

2005 2004 2003

$ 14 % 9 % 16
352 259 243

(338) (250) (227)
(92) (130) (106)
- 330 104

(30) (30) (30)

(460)  (80) (259)

128 20 73

(332) (60) (186)
794 1465 1,837

$ 462 $1,405 $1,652




STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries
Realized gain on sale of investment security
ESOP shares earned
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Other operating activities

Net cash used in operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from loan to subsidiary
Dividends receivable

Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sale of investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Dividend received from subsidiary

Cash dividends

Treasury stock purchased

Net used in financing activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2005 2004 2003
$ 462 $1,405 $1,652
(794) (1,465) (1,837)
- (330) (104)
88 133 122
30 30 30
(987) (304) 81
(1,201) (531) (56)
41 56 56
911 8 7

(18) - -
- 430 154
934 494 217
213 140 35
- - 1,500
(683) (664) (651)
- - (2,687)
(470)  (524) (1,803)
(737)  (561) (1,643)
982 1,543 3,186
$ 245 $ 982 $1,543
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ITEM 9: CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
ITEM 9A;: CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Under the supervision and with the participationh&f Company's management, including our Chief e Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, the Company has evaluated the effectiveinéshe design and operation of its disclosurdrotsmand procedures (as defined in Rule
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Agtj e end of the period covered by this annuabreBased upon that evaluation, the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officencluded that, as of the end of the period cal/byethis report, the Company's
disclosure controls and procedures are effectianture that information required to be disclosetthé reports that the Company files or
submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 193¢cdorded, processed, summarized and reportddnulite time periods specified in the
Securities and Exchange Commission's rules andsfofimere has been no change in the Company's ahmontrol over financial reporting
during the most recent fiscal quarter that has risdie affected, or is reasonable likely to mat#yiaffect, the Company's internal control o
financial reporting.

ITEM 9B: OTHER INFORMATION
None
PART 1lI
ITEM 10: DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE CO MPANY

(a) Information concerning the directors of the @amy is incorporated by reference hereunder ircCitn@pany's Proxy Materials for the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

(b) Set forth below is information concerning theeEutive Officers of the Company at December 30520

NAME AGE POSITIONS HELD WITH THE C OMPANY
Thomas W. Schneider 44 President and Chief Execu tive Officer
James A. Dowd, CPA 38 Vice President, Chief Fin ancial Officer
Edward A. Mervine 49 Vice President, General C ounsel

John F. Devlin 41 Vice President, Senior Co mmercial Lender
Melissa A. Miller 48 Vice President, Chief Ope rating Officer
Rhonda Hutchis 47 Vice President, Retail Le nding
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ITEM 11: EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information with respect to management compensatiahtransactions required under this item is ipoated by reference hereunder in the
Company's Proxy Materials for the Annual Meetingstdckholders under the caption "Compensation”.

ITEM 12: SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information contained under the sections captid'Stock Ownership of Management" is incorpordigdeference to the Company's
Proxy Materials for its Annual Meeting of Stockheid.

ITEM 13: CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

The information required by this item is set foutider the caption "Certain Transactions" in theif@fe Proxy Materials for the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders and is incorporated hebgimeference.

ITEM 14: PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is set foutider the caption "Audit and Related Fees" in tkéritive Proxy Materials for the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders and is incorporated hebgimeference.
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ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a)(2) Financial Statements - The Company's cotiatdd financial statements, for the years ende@mber 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003,
together with the Report of Independent Regist®wallic Accounting Firm are filed as part of thisrol0-K report. See "ltem 8: Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data.” The supplehfaraacial information listed and appearing heteashould be read in conjunction w
the financial statements included in this report.

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules - All finahstatement schedules have been omitted as theeddnformation is inapplicable or has
been included in "ltem 7: Management Discussion/Aamalysis."

(b) Exhibits

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Pathfinder Bang, Inc. (Incorporated herein by reference toGoenpany's Current Report on Form 8-K
dated June 25, 2001)

3.2 Bylaws of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. (Incorpodakerein by reference to the Company's QuarteroRen Form 10Q dated August 15,
2005)

4 Form of Stock Certificate of Pathfinder Bancdrg,. (Incorporated herein by reference to the CamjsaCurrent Report on Form 8-K dated
June 25, 2001)

10.1 Form of Pathfinder Bank 1997 Stock Option Klanorporated herein by reference to the Compa®ngdfile no. 333-53027)

10.2 Form of Pathfinder Bank 1997 Recognition aeteRtion Plan
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Se&iil. 333-53027)

10.3 2003 Executive Deferred Compensation Plarofparated by herein by reference to the Companya&®rly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended March 31, 2004 file no. 000-23601

10.4 2003 Trustee Deferred Fee Plan (Incorporagdtebein by reference to the Company's QuarterfyodReon Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2004 file no. 000-23601)

10.5 Employment Agreement between the Bank and Blsdii. Schneider, President and Chief Executivec@ffjincorporated by reference
to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-QHerquarter ended June 30, 2004 file no. 000-23601)

10.6 Employment Agreement between the Bank and EtliwaMervine, Corporate Counsel (Incorporated éfgrence to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter entlate 30, 2004 file no. 000-23601)

21 Subsidiaries of Company

23 Consent of Beard Miller Company LLP

31.1 Rule 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) Certification af tbhief Executive Officer
31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) Certification af hief Financial Officer

32.1 Section 1350 Certification of the Chief Exéotiand Chief Financial Officer
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of #muties Exchange Act of 1934, the Company hag dalised this report to be signed on its

behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authdrize

Pathfinder
Date: March 30, 2006 By: /s/ Th
Th
President

Pursuant to the requirement of the Securities Exch
has been signed below by the following persons on
in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

By: /s/ Ja
Janett
Date: Mar
By: /s/ Thomas W. Schneider By:/s/ Chr
Thomas W. Schneider, President Chr
and Chief Executive Officer
Date: March 30, 2006 Date: Mar
By: /s/ James A. Dowd By:/s/ Geo
James A. Dowd, Vice President, Geo

Chief Financial Officer and
Trust Officer

Date: March 30, 2006 Date: Mar
By: /s/ Bruce E. Manwaring By:/s/ Cor
Bruce E. Manwaring, Director Cor
Date: March 30, 2006 Date: Mar
By: /s/ L. William Nelson, Jr. By:/s/ Chr
L. William Nelson, Jr. Director Chr
Date: March 30, 2006 Date: Mar
By: /s/ Steven W. Thomas By:/s/ Llo
Steven W. Thomas, Director Llo
Date: March 30, 2006 Date: Mar
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nette Resnick
e Resnick, Chairman of the Board
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is R. Burritt, Director
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rge P. Joyce
rge P. Joyce, Director
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te J. Spencer
te J. Spencer, Director
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is C. Gagas, Director
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yd Stemple, Director
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EXHIBIT 21: SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Company Percent Owned

Pathfinder Bank (1) 100% Pathfinder Statutory Ta(9%

(1) Pathfinder Commercial Bank, Pathfinder REITG. land Whispering Oaks Development Corporationd@Wned by Pathfinder Bank



CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.
Oswego, New York

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢lee Registration Statement on Form S-8 (N053327) of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. of
our report dated February 3, 2006, relating toctivesolidated financial statements which appeani;Annual Report on Form 10-K.

/sl BEARD M LLER COWANY LLP

Beard Mller Conpany LLP
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
March 24, 2006



EXHIBIT 31.1: RULE 13A -14(A) / 15C-14(A) CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Certification of Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, Thomas W. Schneider, President and Chief Exee@fficer, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRathfinder Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officers araté responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as def
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)}Heregistrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoitge designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidisris made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratfislosure controls and procedures and presentesisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psint based on such evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgit's internal control over financial reportihgt occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal cohtreer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anablve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiiotiernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committethe registrant's board of directors:

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigtsaability to record, process, summarize and rtefreincial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a siniifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

March 30, 2006 /sl  Thomas W Schnei der
Thomas W  Schnei der
President and Chief Executive Oficer



EXHIBIT 31.2RULE 13A-14(A) / 15C-14(A) CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Certification of Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, James A. Dowd, Vice President and Chief Findr@féicer, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRathfinder Bancorp,Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiormny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officers araté responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as def
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)}Heregistrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoitge designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidisris made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratfislosure controls and procedures and presentesisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psint based on such evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgit's internal control over financial reportihgt occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal cohtreer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anablve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiiotiernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committethe registrant's board of directors:

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigtsaability to record, process, summarize and rtefreincial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a siniifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

March 30, 2006 /sl James A. Dowd
James A, Dowd
Vice President and Chief Financial Oficer



EXHIBIT 32.1 SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIE F EXECUTIVE AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarksr@ct of 2002

Thomas W. Schneider, President and Chief Exec@ifieer, and James A. Dowd, Vice President and Jfiieancial Officer of Pathfinder
Bancorp, Inc. (the "Company"), each certify in bépacity as an officer of the Company that he baewed the Annual Report of the
Company on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembg@15 and that to the best of his knowledge:

1. the report fully complies with the requiremeotsSections 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Ad9#4; and

2. the information contained in the report fairkggents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company.

The purpose of this statement is solely to compth Witle 18, Chapter 63,
Section 1350 of the United States Code, as ameng&gction 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

March 30, 2006 /'s/ Thomas W Schnei der
Thomas W  Schnei der
President and Chief Executive Oficer

March 30, 2006 /sl James A. Dowd
James A, Dowd
Vice President and Chief Financial Oficer



